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The art of development
Since its inception seven years ago, the Bank has selectively acquired works of
artists in the areas in which it operates. The selection of artworks is done around
the theme People and Development, with some emphasis on artists who may not
have ready access to the art market. One Way of achievingthis isthrough an annual
art exhibition which is arranged by the Ladies’ Club of the Bank and at which art
works by relatively unknown artists fIOm all over Southern Africa are on public
display and for sale alongside works by more established and better-known
artists.
A large portion of the proceeds of sales at the exhibition held in November 1989
was donated by the Ladies’ Club to the Katlehong Art Centre. At this exhibition
the Bank itself acquired a number of artworks from artists of the Centre. Six of these
have been selected to portray in this report the main development functions into
which the operations of the Bank are organized:
Woodcuts on the front and back pages are by:
1 MD Ntanzi Z BManyoni
3 JSethwela 4 GTsolo
5 BManyoni 6 BManyoni
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Milestones
June 1983: i ,
The Agreement constituting the DeveIOpment Bank of Southern Africa was Signed
in Cape Town by the original member governments. South Africa, Transkei,
Bophuthatswana, Venda arid Ciskei. The first Council of Governors had its
inaugural meeting, at which members ofthe Board ofDirectors were appomted
and elected and Dr Simon Brand was appointed as Chairman and Chief Executive.
At the same meeting Prof Owen Horwood was elected as President of the Council
of Governors, a position to which he has annually been re-elected since then.
September 1983: . .
The Development Bank of Southern Africa off1c1a11y opened.
February 1984: . ,
The Bank began operations in temporary offices 1n Sahdton by taking over from
the government ofSouth Africathe administration of% approved projects and 42
projects in the appraisal phase with a loan value in the order of R350 million.
September 1984: . .
The first loan agreement on a project appraised by the Bank itself was Signed:
1986:
The Council of Governors of the Bank approved an extended brief which
authorized the Bank to widen the range of projects supported by it to include the
field ofeducatiori and training. At the request ofthe then government ofSouth West
Africa/Namibia, the Bank entered into a contract to administer a development fund
for the territory.
1987:
Preparation began forthe construction ofthe permanent headquarters ofthe Bank
in Midrand, The Bank also became involved in financing urban development
projects in South Africa outside of the self-goverriirig territories.
1988:
The first involvement of the Bank in non-member neighbouring countries took
place with the approval of DBSA finance for seven technical assistance and
investment projects to the value of R131 million in Lesotho forming part of a
R400 million programme related to the Lesotho Highlands Water Scheme. A loan
of R217 000 was approved for a technical assistance project to study the agro-
forestry potential of Mozambique.
December 1988:
The Bank moved its headquarters to its newly completed Midrand premises.
January 1989:
An evaluation report on the regional industrial development programme.
containihgthe findings and recommendations ofan independent Panel ofExperts
and based on research carried out and managed by the Bank fromjuiy 1987. was
presented to the governments concerned.
31 March 1989:
The Bank had 1 178 projects in the project cycle and had approved a cumulative
614 projects with a total expected financial contribution of R3 818 million.
1990:
The Bank prepares for its first entry into the capital markets, with a public issue
of stock aimed at raising R175 million, as the first part of R300 million of private
sector funds which the Bank hopes to raise during the 1990/91 financial year for
financing development projects and programmes.
31 March 1990:
The Bank had 1 330 projects in the project cycle and had approved a cumulative
706 projects, on which it expects to make a total financial contribution of
R4 894 million.
x
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Mission and objectives
The Development Bank of Southern Africa
I__
L
j
supports economic development through loan finance for projects that
advance the level of development of those communities and regions in Southern
Africa which are in need of such assistance
makes provision for a wide range of development projects through its loan
finance in the fields ofregion and state, rural and agricultural, urban, business
and entrepreneurial, bulk infrastructure and human resource development
provides anumber of other services which include technical assistance loans
and grants for, and advice on, development policy and planning, institutional
development and financial management, as well as project preparation,
research, training and publications on development
strives to attain its objectives, which include the promotion of economic
development in its broadest sense and the reduction ofdisparities in the levels
ofeconomic development which exist between the different regions, through
the promotion of the investment of public and private capital and the use of funds
from financial markets and other resources for development
pursues four major programmes in carrying out its objectives:
_ the development programme, which includes technical assistance projects
and public and private investment projects
e the agencyprogramme, which includes projects administered by the Bank
on behalf of other lenders and donors
e the assignment programme, which includes research on data and
development policy issues
- the mobilization, utilization and development of manpower and financial
resources and other internal support functions enabling the Bank to carry
out its activities
endeavours to support all developing areas, regions and states in Southern
Africa in its efforts to promote a sustainable development process.
-n addition to its present member countries, membership ofthe Bank is open to
any independent country in Southern Africa. Associate membership is available
to independent countries outside the region.
The ofh’cial
opening of the
new offices of
the Bank in
Midrand on
22 November
J989 by the
South African
State President,
Mr F W de
Kierk.



The executive
management of
the Bank,
From the left,
Dr Simon Brand,
Chairman and
Chief Executive,
and the four
General
Managers,
Deon Richter,
Nick
Christodoulou,
johan Kruger
and Andre ta
Grange. Since
moving to Its
new offices In
january 1989, the
Bank has
adopted an
Informaf
dressrcode.
The organization of the Bank
During 1989/90 the Bank was organized into four major complexes ethe
Operations Complex, the Policy and Strategy Complex, the Resources Complex
and the Support Services Complex.
The following functional groups fall within the Operations Complex:
, region and state, including support for economic structural reform at region
and state level, as well as co-ordination ofBank activities to achieve a coherent
support programme per region and state
_ rural and agricultural development, including integrated rural planning,
community support. rural infrastructure, agriculture, forestry and fisheries
development
9 urban development, including urban infrastructure, support for housing
development and development of the full urban fabric
e business and entrepreneurial development, including mining, construction,
manufacturing, commerce, property development, tourism, general support
of the private sector’s role and specific support for emerging businesses
9 infrastructure development, including transportation, water resources,
energy, and posts and telecommunications development
e human resources development, including formal and non-formal entrepre-
neurial training, and technical and tertiary level education and training
The Operations Complex also includes the Organizational Development Planning
and Central Specialists units. the latter consisting of institutional, financial, and
technical and environmental disciplines.
The Policy and Strategy Complex includes the Centre for Policy Analysis,
the Centre for Information Analysis, the Development Training Unit and the Project
Evaluation Unit.
The Resources Complex includes the Information, Finance and the Human
Resources Groups.
The Support Services Complex includes the Corporate Communications
Division, the Legal and Secretarial Division, the Administration and Technical
Services Division, as well as Internal Audit.



The organization of the Bank
Council of Governors
Prof OPP Horwood (President); Mr RF Botha (South Africa); MI ST Boya (South
Africa); the Hon Mr R Cronje(Bophuthatswana); Dr DJ de Villiers(South Africa);
VII Bl du Plessis (South Africa); Mr JC Heunis (South Africa); Mr MM Maki
Ciskei); the Hon Chief MEP Malefane (Ciskei); the Hon Gota ERB Nesengani
Venda); the Hon Mr GSK Nota (Trahskei); the Hon Mr SLL Rathebe (Bophutha-
stana); the Hon GM Ramabulana (Venda); Dr CL Stals (South Africa); the Hon
Mr M Titus(Transke1); Dr G van N Viljoen (South Africa).
Board of Directors
Dr SS Brand (Chairman and Chief Executive); MIJ Barker; MI IA Botes;
Dr WI de V1111ers(to November 1989); the Hon Mr BE Keikelame; Mr NJ Kotze;
Dr DC Krogh; Mr PJ Liebenberg; Mrs M Maponya; Dr B Maree; Mr JAJ Maree;
Mr GS Muller; MI MR Madula; Prof WL Nkuhlu; MI RA Plumbridge;
VII PH Swart; Mr MM Swana; Mr PI van Rooy.
As part of the opening functions for the new building, the Council of Governors
and Board of Directors held a joint meeting on 24 November 1989.
Present at the meeting were:
Front:
The Hon R Cronje, the Hon Chief MEP Malefane, Dr SS Brand,
Prof OPP Horvvood, Dr G van N V1’1joen, the Hon GSK Notat
Back:
Mr PH Swart, Mr MR Madula, Mr M Maid, MrjAj Maree, Mr RA PJumbn’dge,
Dr DC Krogh, Dr D/ de VJ’Ih’ers, Der Maree, the Hon M Titus, Mr B/ du Ptessis,
Mr ST Boya, Mr/ Barker, Mr GS Muller, Dr CL Stats, Mr /C Heunjs, Mr jA Botes,



Dr Simon Brand
Chairmanls report
Duringthe past financial year the Development Bank ofSouthern Africa reached
a new level of financial operations while further consolidating in its utilization of
human resources and successfully settling into the use of its new headquarters
building. rPhe year also saw important changes in the socio-politioal environment
within which the Bank operates, which both confirm the importance ofthe Bank’s
mission and affect the possibilities of putting development programmes and
projects into effect.
Resources for development
Sound progress has been made with the organizational development ofthe Bank,
Which is aimed at the more effective development and utilization of the human
resources at its disposal rather than further growth in numbers. On the financial
side the Bank has broken through to a level of disbursements in the order ofR8OO
million per annum. This brought it to the point where the third. leg ofits financial
mobilization model, in addition to parliamentary grants and own generation of
funds, namely capital market funds, needed to be activated. At the time of this
report going to press the first step had been taken successfully with the raising
ofthe first R178 million out ofan envisaged R300 million to be mobilized in the local
capital market during the financial year 1990/91, and a total of R1 500 million to
be mobilized in the local and overseas markets overthe next five years. rllhis augurs
well for the future funds mobilization programme ofthe Bank, in terms of which
the South African government has already committed itself to provide a total of
R2 500 million over the five-year period up to 1992/93, and own generation offunds
is projected to average R260 million over the next 5 years. The funding ofthe rising
evel of commitments entered into by the Bank is thus well secured.
rTogether with the funds newly allocated by the South African government towards
social upliftment programmes, the increasing willingness of private corporations
to augment and create new funds dedicated to development. and the first signs
of willingness on the part of foreign governments to direct increased funding to
South Africa for development purposes in response to the local political Changes,
his high level of financial mobilization by the Bank holds out hope that the demands
For the redressing ofeconomic disparities that accompany the process ofpolitical
change. can be addressed to a meaningful extent.
Socioeconomic development cannot. however, only be dealt with by earmarking
funds at the macro-econornic level. It is therefore important to note that the Bank.
like other institutions in the development field. has over the past number ofyears
built up a sound track record, based on demonstrably workable approaches in
different sectors ofdevelopment, in terms ofwhiCh such resources can be applied
at the micro-economio level. With this experience in hand the Bank is well
positioned to meet new Challenges ofinteracting constructively with other sources
of funds to apply such resources effectively and in the context of balanced
development programmes. It has already begun to do so by entering into
discussions with representatives ofthe new independent development fund set
up by the South African government, with private corporations that have set up
development funds. and with foreign development funding agencies. Specific
ways ofinteraction that have been explored in these discussions range from the
exchange ofinforrnation to co-financing arrangements and the contracting ofthe
Bank’s project appraisal capacity to other development funding agencies, as has
already been done successfully in respect ofthe Development Fund ofNamibia
and the Development Co-operation Fund of the South African Department of
Foreign Affairs.
At the same time that these exciting opportunities are opening up for an increased
flow offunds into tried and tested development applications! there is also reason
for concern about the continued capacity ofinstitutions to implement and operate
development programmes and projects. Uncertainty arising from the process of
political change and disruptions caused by social unrest have put the already
fragile capacities of many ofthe existing institutions in developing areas served
by the Bank under severe pressure. It is therefore a challenge to all concerned
to devise institutional arrangements that can during the period of political transition
X
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Chairmanls report
&_____
effectively carry out development programmes and projects and at the same time
be consistent with anticipated future political developments. Besides continued
support for existing institutions that continue to demonstrate viability, this includes
innovation in government structures and support for appropriate non-
governmental organisations that can in certain circumstances perform more
effectively than government institutions.
Where appropriate, the Bank has brought the need for such adjustments in
institutional arrangements to the attention of the governments concerned and
interacted With representatives of all shades of political opinion in an effortto make
a constructive contribution at two levels: by taking part in the process of institutional
adjustment that is required to underpin economic development in the midst of
political Change, as well as by contributing to the debate about the future economic
order in Southern Africa and about future economic strategies and economic
policies. On the basis ofits experience over the past number of years the Bank
is well placed to offer practical insights and tested approaches as a contribution
to these discussions.
Internal adjustments
The Bank must, of course, also take a good look at its own processes and structures
to adjust to the Changing environment in which it operates. The indications of
possible changes in the constitutional status of some of its member countries and
of the self-governingterritories and emerging local authorities in South Africa, all
of Which are amongst the Bank’s main borrowers, make it necessary in the first
place to anticipate and adjust to Changes in its institutional environment, in both
the public and private sectors, in the ways suggested above Secondly, they also
require timely measures to adapt the governing structures of the Bank to the
changing circumstances, and lend even greater urgency than before to the goal
of achieving a staffcomposition that is more representative of the population make-
up in its area of operation.
For the Bank to play a constructive role in supporting the newly emerging order
in South and Southern Africa Will also require further attention to the appropriate
role the Bank can play on a sustainable basis in Southern Africa in a broader sense,
in co-operation with other bilateral and multilateral development agencies active
in the subcontinent. In this connection the Board and Council have duringthe past
financial year confirmed their authorization to the management of the Bank to
explore further its expanded involvement in Southern Africa while being mindful
of the fact that local human and financial resources are limited and that
development needs within its present membership area are vast. Substantial
further increase in its involvement in other countries in Southern Africa will
therefore depend on the extent to which the Bank can also succeed in mobilizing
resources from outside its present membership area.
In this respect, the increasing and constructive contact between the Bank and a
variety of bilateral and multilateral donor agencies is indeed gratifying. Such
interaction, of course. also has the further advantage that the Bank is increasingly
becoming a part of the network of experience residing in the international family
of development agencies. This has already benefited the Bank tremendously in
testing its own approaches and in getting access to those of other agencies with
relevant experience,
DBSA 2000
In attemptingto meet these diverse challenges the Bank finds itselfatthe forefront
of economic restructuring in South and Southern Africa It is the intention ofthe
management of the Bank to remain there and thus carry out the intention set out
in its establishment agreement that it should not be diverted by political
considerations from focusing at all times on the need to address economic
disparities effectively and on a sustainable basis It is With this in mind that the
management and staff of the Bank rededicated themselves in a DBSA 2000 project
to carrying out its mission by serving the poor in Southern Africa, Wherever they
are to be found.



Chairmants report
This annual report is presented around this theme, Which underlines the reality
that addressing the needs ofthe poor in Southern Africa and reducing economic
inequalities Will have to remain prime objectives of socioeconomic policy in
Southern Africa, Whatever the nature of political and constitutional change over
the next decade and longer.
Acknowledgements
As in the past, the achievements of the Bank duringthe financial year under review
were made possible by the combination of continued support from its participating
governments and their development agencies, the sound guidance given by the
Council and Board, the loyalty and dedication ofits management and staffand the
increasing recognition of its role by the public at large. The constructive interest
of the media in the activities of the Bank has greatly assisted in raising both the level
of awareness and the understanding of development issues.
During and shortly after the end ofthe year under review the Bank lost through
death two members of its Council who had served as Governors since its inception,
Dr Gerhard de Kock and Mr SLL Rathebe. Their dedication to and participation
in the activities ofthe Bank will be greatly missed, as will their contributions in the
broader field of public policy in Southern Africa
gm
Chairman and
Chief Executive



The approach of the Bank towards the
alleviation of poverty
Recent political developments in Southern Africa have brought the existence of
economic inequalities in the region and in particular the plight of poor communities
and their low quality of life more sharply into public focus, tending to shift socio-
economic development even higher up the agenda of priorities than has been the
case until now.
The nature of the problem
The upper middle income rating accorded South Africa and other countries in
Southern Africa by the World Bank conceals the wide range of problems more
or less typical of developing countries, The more important and visible among
these problems in the membership area ofthe Bank include a high population
growth rate; escalating urbanization; under- and un-employment of more than a
third of the labour force; increasing numbers of people for whom abject poverty
is a daily struggle; a racially skewed concentration of income and wealth, and a
spatially skewed concentration of economic activity; vast social deficits reflected
inter aha in a lack of adequate and affordable housing, education and health
services; financial constraints manifested in budget deficits and high taxation;
persistently high inflation rates; low productivity; shortages of entrepreneurial
and professional expertise and technical skills; and a shortage of development
funds aggravated by restricted access to foreign capital markets, disinvestment
and capital flight.
This formidable list of interrelated socio-economic realities is the result of
immensely complex socioeconomic and political processes. An appropriate and
effective policy and strategy for addressing any one of these problems will have
to take into account firstly the nature of the problem, secondly, the complex
relations between each ofthese problems, and thirdly, the deep-seated causes
of poverty These considerations have presented the Bank with the need to adopt
a pragmatic approach, focused on Southern Africa, to the alleviation of poverty,
rather than one based on ideological considerations derived, for example, from
socialist or capitalist philosophies.
The central goal towards which the Bank’s programmes are aimed is the alleviation
of poverty and the reduction of inequalities in the distribution of income and wealth
for all, in particular by raising the quality of life of those communities and in those
areas which have escaped the benefits ofpast economic growth and development
Quality of life depends inter alia on the opportunities people have and avail
themselves of to satisfy their fundamental human needs. To the degree that human
needs motivate, mobilize and engage people to satisfy these needs, they could
be regarded not only as deprivations but also as opportunities. These consist of
the capabilities, labour and entrepreneurial resources and efforts of the poor
themselves. Through appropriate support, development could emanate directly
from the actions, expectations and creative awareness ofthe poor, which implies
that poor people could take a leading role in raising their own quality of life. The
Bank’s approach towards poverty is therefore rooted in the belief that human
betterment is at once the end that development strategies seek and the principal
means of implementing such strategies.
In Southern Africa the unacceptably large differences in access to economic
opportunities and control over economic resources between different regions and
among different sections of the population inhibit the effective participation of a
large number of people in the economic growth and development process. What
needs to be done is to mobilize the idle and underutilized physical and human
resources, specifically in the less developed regions and among the less
advantaged communities, and put them to socially desirable use in the production
of goods and services.
The approach to the problem
To alleviate poverty, appropriate interventions and supporting policies are
needed to liberate and reinforce the wealth of social creativity and self-managing
initiatives to be found in ordinary individuals by opening up economic
opportunities Encouraging and engaging the potential of the poor would
9



The approach of the Bank towards the alleviation of poverty
contribute towards a process of self-reliant and participative development,
enabling the poor to take control ofthe decision-making processes Which affect
their lives. Together with the productive use of idle and underutilized physmal
resources in less developed regions, this approach to poverty alleViation can
contribute to the expansion of economic growth and a change in the structure of
growth. It also possesses the qualities of sustainability and self-fulfilment for the
people involved
It is also an economic imperative to ensure that affirmative action or support
programmes do not diminish growth prospects in existing soundly-based
economic activities. The latter need to be expanded further, interalia to generate
resources for much needed welfare expenditure (education, health, etc) as well
as for development support programmes. In essence, this approach emphasizes
economic empowerment ofthe poor while continuing to build on past economic
achievements. Supporting economic empowerment and self-reliance means
regarding development not as a top-down exercise controlled by the state, but
as the outcome ofa diversity ofindividual and public collective actions capable
of empowering one another.
This pragmatic approach does not imply a denial of the need to root out real
injustices associated With a biased distribution ofwealth and income in a country
However, it does question whether steps to do so would on their own have a
sustained and meaningful impact on the large poverty sector in Southern Africa.
In adherence to this approach. the activities ofthe Bank are aimed at facilitating
access to economic opportunities and resources for the poor by addressing
relevant development constraints. Through its development support
programmes, the Bank also facilitates effective participation by the poor in such
opportunities
This approach can only be applied if political, economic, social and legal
constraints inhibiting effective and efficient mobilization ofidle and underutilized
physical resources and human potentials are eliminated. Towards this end, the
Bank’s activities are directed mainly at aspects of economic restructuring, Due
to the integrated nature of the various systems, the influence of the Bank on
economic restructuring often spills over to the other systems. The Bank’s influence
on economic restructuring must, however. be seen in perspective. The limited
extent ofthe Bank’s resources in relation to the extensive development challenge
in Southern Africa necessitates that the Bank focus on demonstration approaches
that can be followed through by other public and private development agents.
The Bank does not have a direct influence on all economic policies impacting on
development, eg macroeconomic policies, However, it does attempt to intIuence
relevant economic policies in order to create a policy environment conducive to
the alleviation of poverty
The means at hand
The means available to the Bank to achieve its objectives have two broadly inter-
related dimensions: firstly, policy dialogue, Which refers to the on-going
discussions between the Bank and development agents on the acceptance and
implementation ofan appropriate development strategy, laying the foundations
for sustained growth and development essential for poverty alleviation; and
secondly, project lending directed at the following:
I fl financial and technical assistance for long-term public investment programmes
benefiting less developed communities
I I support for the entrepreneurial poor or emerging entrepreneurs to increase
the capacity ofindividuals to exploit productive opportunities effectively and
efficiently
I I through its community support programmes, the Bank supports local initiatives
and facrlitates the development oflooal organizational Skills and institutional
capacities with a view to encouraging collective action and the capacity of
communities to initiate, implement and manage their own development on a
sustained basis.
In its use of both policy dialogue and project lending, the Bank pays special
attention to minimizing potentially negative social and environmental impacts.
X
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The approach of the Bank towards the alleviation of poverty
It is important to keep in mindthat the Bank does not undertake development work
in its own right, but supports development by extending finance and providing
other services to intermediate agents for the execution of programmes and
projects. In its efforts to address the needs of its clients, it works through
various governments, their development agencies and nongovernmental
development organizations (NGOs). The Bank can readily accommodate any
appropriate and capable intermediate agents as it believes that the need for
development and poverty alleviation is not circumscribed by political boundaries
of any one constitutional model. Since its establishment, the Bank hastried to direct
its development support activities towards programmes and projects that are
likely to have validity almost irrespective of the precise nature of future
developments in the political sphere. The Bank is also inclined to place a stronger
emphasis on NGOs as intermediate agents Where it is apparent that, in reaching
the poor, they are better placed and geared to support community initiatives than
official entities. However, an abrupt change in intermediate agents could interrupt
the continuity of the Bank’s development efforts insofar as new agents might initially
lack the required critical level of organizational capacity for sound preparation,
execution and maintenance of projects.
The complexity of the considerations inducing the Bank to adopt a pragmatic
approach to poverty alleviation in Southern Africa also holds true forthe adoption
of a comprehensive and integrated approach to structural reform. This approach
avoids the pitfalls of thinking about and practising development as little more than
a series of ad hoc support programmes or projects to improve living conditions
for a selected number ofcornmunities in the population. Each projectwould then
be judged merely on its own merits. In the experience ofthe Bank much can be
gained from an approach Where individual support programmes or projects are
judged not only on their own merits, but also on their potential impact in a wider
socioeconomic and spatial context.
Experience has clearly shown that it is virtually impossible to plan and implement
effective and efficient development programmes and projects within a framework
of unclear or poor policy. Based on sound economic and development principles,
the following are some key policy aspects that require emphasis in the endeavour
to alleviate poverty in Southern Africa:
the highest overall economic growth rate and balanced development. based
on available physical and human potential
_ efficiency and effectiveness in resource allocation and use by individuals as
well as the public sector
physical and social infrastructure as well as a policy framework aimed at
fostering more efficient production, individual initiative and responsibility and
social stability through government intervention
support of individual initiatives and capabilities as well as local institutional
capacities and decentralized decision making and responsibility to enable
individuals and communities to initiate, implement and manage their own
development on a sustained basis
harmonization of economic policies having an impact on development,
irrespective of the level of policy making
7 economic development regions comprising various subregions defined by
internally homogeneous economic potentias and needs. in order to foster
socio-econornically integrated development in a wider spatial context.
Through its influence on structural reform supported by policy dialogue and
project lending the Bank aims at supporting tie creation of an environment
conducive to a sustained private sector investment process wherein the poor are
enabled to participate. The process of establisthg favourable conditions for all
individuals to work and invest is essentially a process of economic empowerment
This wealth creationist approach to the alleviation of poverty equally emphasizes
the importance of three aspects, namely the struct ire and rate of economic growth,
sustainability of the growth and development process, and investment in poor
people in orderto facilitate progress towards a more equal distribution ofvvealth
and income.
11



The scholarship
scheme Which
was introduced in
the Bank during
the past year
provides for both
a limited number
of undergraduate
bursaries and
a one-year
internship for
students Who
have completed
their studies.
jakuua Eirare,
Edzi Netshifhefhe,
Dumo Motau and
Zelda Streicher,
on internship
this year,
accompanied an
orientation tour
to development
projects in
Qwaqwa early
in 1990.
Overview of Bank activities
Mobilization of resources
Human resources
The primary objective of the employment policy and human resources
management policy of the Bank is to provide it with the diverse, appropriately
qua1ified and motivated staffit needs to do its work. As the calibre and morale of
the staff are prerequisites for the Bank to fulfil its mission, the Bank strives for a
work culture ofhigh quality of1ife, optimal performance, equal opportunities and
optimal development ofhurnan resources. It has been realized overthe yearsthat
it is not possible for the Bank to attain its mission un1ess all its staff members fully
associatethemse1ves with, internalize and practise the mission ofthe Bank.
To achieve this, several strategies and systems have been put into action The
Organization Development Programme (ODP), which was announced towards the
end of 1988, continued throughout 1989 and wi11 move into a consolidation and
maintenance phase during 1990. Various new streamhned, and in some cases
unique, approaches were considered, tested and irnp1ernented.
Highlights were the commissioning of the Human Resources P1anning Centre
Which provides managers with the opportunity to identify and learn more about
their staffmembers. This has proved to be very va1uab1e in career and succession
p1annir1g. The establishment of a psycho1ogica1 service for staff members
contributed towards a higher seif-knowledge oftheir strengths, weaknesses and
career interests. The approval of the new training and development strategy,
incorporating knowledge of the Bank, know1edge of development, and man-
agerial knowledge and skilis, provided the Bark with a fu11y integrated human
resources development plan. An integrated performance management system
was also successfu11yimp1ernented, which ensures that training and developing
human resources is done on an individual reeds-driven basis A revised
recruitment system is current1y being implemented, A seif-training library was
established and has proved to be very effective. The Trainee Scheme was
extensively revised, with the main focus on a self-discovery approach. In-depth
workshops were also conducted with a11groups within the Bank to assist them with
their own pianning process.
During the year an extensive fringe benefit remuneration survey was undertaken.
Based on the results thereof the first steps to implement a tota11y f1exib1e cash
remuneration package for a11staffrnernbers, to be phased in over the next financia1
year, have been imp1ernentedr Remuneration is based on merit on1y.



Overview of Bank activities
a
Since its inception, the Bank has followed a policy of maintaining a core staff
complement and of making extensive use of external consultants and specialists,
Their specialist knowledge has proved to be most valuable, especially in the
appraisal and monitoring of projects. During 1989/90, the Bank appointed 242
external consultants and specialists to assist With the execution of its functions,
bringing the cumulative number of consultants appointed by the Bank to 667. It
remains the policy of the Bankto broaden the exposure ofconsultants to the Bank
and to use as many firms as possib1e.
Over the past year, the permanent staff complement of the Bank stabilized and
at 31 March 1990 comprised 668 staffrnembers. 12 contract appointments and three
secondments. This brought the overall staffing figure to 683 as compared to 692
at the end ofthe 1988/89 financial year. The turnover rate of 14 per cent over the
financial year is not regarded as excessive, It is also gratifying that many
empIOyees leaving the Bank remain invo1ved in development. The Bank
acknowledgesthe factthat it also hasaresponsibiiityto deliver suitably qualified
people to the deve1opmentfie1din general.
The Bank firmly believes that its staffcomposition should increasingly retiect the
composition of the total Southern African population. It believes in equal
opportunity for all and to put this into practice, the Bank also recognizes that major
inequalities exist in access to educational services and in general in social
conditions between different members of the community from which it draws its
staff. Special support is thus offered to members from communities who have not
had access to equal facilities.
Financial resources
The financial resources mobilized by the Bank to finance its lending operations
include the share capital subscribed by its members. contributions to the
Development Fund, loans raised in the financial markets and the flow of
repayments on its loans. Sound management of these resources based on prudent
financial and lending policies ensures that the demands of the Bank’s various
constituencies are satisfied and that its development effort remains sustainable.
Financial structure
The conservative capital structure of the Bank, as evidenced inthe Balance Sheet,
remains intact, underpinned by generous grant funding in the form of the
Development Fund.
Additional grants totalling R376 million from the South African government during
the year sawthis fund rise to R 1 900 million at the year-end. The additional grants
are part ofa total ofR2 616 million committed to the Bank in terms ofthe current
five-year funding cycle Which began in 1988/89 and of which a total of R746 million
has been received to date.
Complementing its financial structure are specific funding provisions contained
in the Bank’s Establishment Agreement, as well as the recourse the Bank has in
the form of R1 800 million of callable share capital, Which can if necessary be
mobilized to meet its obligations in respect of capital market loans raised and
guarantees issued.
Capital market loans of R96 million, While still relatively small in relation to the
Bank’s othersources of funding, are set to increase significantly as the Bank goes
to the financial markets in the coming year.
The overseas markets a1so present a major opportunity especially as South
Africa emerges from the economic isolation of the past. While there is as yet no
foreign money invested in the Bank, there have been indications of future support
from the international financial community.
Strict asset management is practised by the Bank The primary focus is on the
burgeoningloan book Which has increased at a compound rate of63 per cent per
annum over the last six years to R2 400 million or 92 per cent ofthe Bankis total
assets at the year-end The future of the Bank ultimately depends on the policies
and practices that govern the quality of this lending. Apart from concerning
l3



Overview of Bank activities
themselves with the credit-worthiness of potentia1 borrowers, the Bank’s staff
carefully appraises the economic,technical.financia1, organizational, managerial
and operationa1aspects ofa11 projects for which a loan is proposed. This thorough
and systematic process which is undertaken with the co-operation ofborrowers
goes a1ong way to minimizing default as we11 as project risk.
The Bank continues to manage its liquid investment portfolio actively to secure
the highest possible returns. The Bank’s 1iquidity 1evels were deliberately
managed down during the year from 18 per cent of tota1 outstanding commitments
at the beginning of the year to 5 per cent at the year-end. This departure from a
stated policy of maintaining liquidity at higher levels was motivated by the
increasing degree ofaccuracy with which the Bank has been ab1e to programme
its loan disbursements Furthermore, with interest rates at high levels for most of
the year, the Bank’s 1iquid resources represented a less cost1y source offunding
for loan disbursements.
Operating results
The Bank covered its operating expenditure for the 1989/90 financia1 year, while
posting an operating surp1us ofR56 million. which compares favourably with the
surplus of R54 mi11ior1 in the preceding year. The increase can be attributed maih1y
to a 13 per cent esca1ation in interest received on deve1opment loans, many of
which are now coming out of moratorium. The servicing ofloans granted by the
Bank is contributing increasingly to the Bank’s resources. Flows from this source
contributed 20 per cent ofthe total cash How during 1989/90 and are expected to
contribute a third ofthe total sources of funds within the next few years,
The timing ofcapita1market10ah redemptions and reissues over the past two years
resulted in a drop in interest payments, which added a further R4,6 mi11ion to the
operating surplus. A rise in operating expenditure which saw the Bank move up
to fu11 staff and operationa1strength partia11y offset these contributions. Sharp1y
reduced expenditure ofR10,4 mil1ion on capita1items, compared with the previous
year, saw the Bank dose the year with a net surplus of R50 mi11ion.
The primary goa1ofthe Bank is, ofcourse, not profit, but economic development
through1oanfinance for projects that advance the level of deve1opment ofthose
communities and regions in Southern Africa which are in need of such assistance.
Maintaining operating surpluses nonetheless remains asine qua non without which
the sustainabihty offuture development terms would not be possible.1nline With
the stated policy ofstrengthening its financia1 structure, the Bank transferred the
net surplus of R50 million for the year to the non-distributab1e General Reserve.
This reserve. which now amounts to R218 mi11ion, apart from being a prudent
contingency provision, enhances the borrowing capacity ofthe Bank while also
partia11y mitigating the effects of infiation on the equity base.
Policy and strategy
Policy analysis
To help give direction to its response to development and poverty, the Bank
created a pohcy and strategy function with a Centre for Policy Ana1ysis as
permanent guardian of and participant in this function. The Centre’s main tasks
include policy analysis and research, support with regard to policy dialogue and
advice, pchcy programming, and policy dissemination through, for instance,
part1c1pation in public debate.
At the same time steps were initiated to adapt the assignment programme ofthe
Bank to the criteria of operational relevance and orientation to structural
adjustments required at policy level to address the needs ofthe disadvantaged
communities.
As a result Ofthis reorientation, the ongoing assignment programme rei1ects an
emphaSis on topical issues re1atedto:
T poverty
economic empowerment
’ inwardihdustrialization
x
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H
human scale development
rural and agricultural development
education and training alternatives
urban and infrastructural development
institutional reform
the environment
financial adjustment,
Examples of assignments completed within the Centre during the year are:
Land use, agricultural productivity and farming systems in Southern Africa
The role of the Bank in improvingthe accessibility and quality of education and
training opportunities in Southern Africa in a cost-effective way
A simulation model of labour, land, food and capital flows between households
in rural KwaZqu
The effect of increased real earnings in agriculture on the farm household.
Information analysis
To support the operational activities of the Bank and its clients, the Bank must have
access to strategically significant information about its Clients and its external
environment. A Centre for Information Analysis has therefore been established
at the Bank to undertake the following:
the identification of clients’ information needs
the timely generation of relevant and reliable information
the analysis and interpretation of information
the rendering of advice and training support
the dissemination of information,
uring the year under review, the following services were completed:
Determination of the development information needs of the six main
development functions and the four specialist groupings of the Operations
Complex of the Bank in order to satisfy these needs,
3 Generation, analysis and interpretation of information on a sectoral and
geographical basis by employing specific techniques in order to contribute
to the knowledge concerningthe development needs, potential and constraints
of the different development regions. Information on these matters serves as
input towards the formulation of strategic development proposals. Based on
such analysis, the following reports were compiled and published:
- Development Information Report: Region F
- Development Information Report: Region G
- Economic and Social Memorandum: Region F
- Economic and Social Memorandum: Region (3
- Southern Africa: An interstate comparison of certain salient features.
Provision Of advice and training on the establishment and maintenance of
functional and effective information systems, The first phases of’assignments
on a Bophuthatswana data base as well as staff development in the KwaZulu
Economic Development Planning Branch, were completed during the year.
Advice and training were also provided to Venda personnel on the compilation
ofthe GDP of Venda as well as on how to do it without outside assistance.
Dissemination ofinformation to internal and external Clients through a corporate
development information system containing statistical trend information from
which time series information can be compiled; a statistical library containing
publications of a predominantly statistical nature, as well as a computerized
information inventory consisting primarily of a reference list of sources relating
to socio-economic development. Further dissemination ofinformation occurs
15
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through a library service also serving the external community by providing
inter-library loans.
Project evaluation
rl’he basic purpose ofthe evaluation phase in the Bank’s project cycle is to assess
the effectiveness, efficiency and sustainability of Bank-supported development
projects and programmes, and learn from past experience to improve the
performance ofthe Bank and the outcome of future projects.
Evaluation work is done in close co-operation with project management and often
with borrowers, so as to ensure quick and effective absorption ofuseful lessons.
Evaluation studies are mostly of an in-depth research nature. and therefore require
careful preparation, Although the aim is to assess the project ex post, if at all
possible. collection ofrequired information and data aboutthe project is initiated
from very early in the project cycle. Evaluation studies are therefore mostly ofa
long-term nature. Development projects, however, vary enormously in size, scope
and complexity, and evaluations necessarily reflect this variation.
Although project completion reports, which amount to self-evaluations by project
teams, are prepared for every completed project. more in-depth evaluation
studies are carried out only for selected projects and programmes.
At present the Evaluation Unit is in an advanced stage of setting up evaluations
oftwo grassroot-type programmes. namely the Farmer Support Programme and
the Small Business Development Programme. In both cases, the intention is to
collect and analyse information over several years by using outside expertise.
Comparative studies of the experience in the programmes over several
geographic areas of implementation Will also be made. Feedback to project
management Will take place continuously.
Preparation work for the setting up of evaluations of urban and infrastructural
development projects is also currently under way.
(Continued on page 30)
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Balance sheet
at 31 March
Capital employed
Share capital
General reserve
Development Fund
Capita1 market 1oans
Capitahzed interest
Employment of capital
Fixed assets
Loans
Investments
Net working capital
Pages 18 to 28 signed for and on
behalf ofthe Board of Directors
by
$4M
W
S 8 Brand
Director
29 May 1990
Midrand
Note
Mega
18
001wa
10
1990
R000
200 000
217 603
1 900 644
94 856
207 449
2 620 552
35 408
2413327
128 998
42 819
2 620 552
M Maponya
Director
29 May 1990
Midrand
1989
R’OOO
200 000
167 552
1 525 644
80 747
132 569
2106512
32 208
1 657 247
411 862
5 195
2106512



Income statement
for the year ended 31 March
Income
Interest received
Other
Less
Interest paid
Technical assistance grants
Net operating income
Less: Expenditure
Auditors’ remuneration
Directors1 fees and expenses
Operating expenditure
Operating surplus
Less: Furniture and equipment written off
Surplus transferred to general
reserve
Note
11
12
13
14
15
1990
R000
137 764
4 332
142 096
11 305
9 333
1 972
130 791
75 440
469
169
74 802
55 351
5 300
50 051
1989
R’OOO
122 366
4619
126 985
16 354
13 921
2 433
110 631
56 665
468
152
56 045
53 966
15 703
38 253
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Cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March N ote 1990
R000
Cash generated from financing
activities 362 004
Development Fund contribution 375 000
1ncrease( , )/decrease in bank
balances and cash - 27 025
Proceeds from share capital issued 0
Capital market loans reissued/
redeemed( 4)
Cash generated from investment
activities 279 664
Decrease in investments 282 864
Investment to expand operations
Construction of head office building - 3 200
Cash generated from financing and
investment activities 641 668
Cash retained from operating
activities 50 270
Cash generated by operations 19.1 50 131
Cash utilized to increase
working capital 19.2 139
Cash available for investment in
loans 691 938
Net increase in loans 19.3 691 938
20
1989
R’OOO
363119
371000
2931
36 000
446812
27 350
46 478
418128
390 469
44 560
42 594
1 966
435 029
435 029



Notes to the financial statements
1. Accounting policies
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis in
conformity with generally accepted accounting practice followed by
similar international institutions. The principal features of the accounting
policies adopted and applied on a basis consistent With the previous year
are set out below.
1.1
1.2
1.3
1.3.1
1.3.2
1.4
1.5
1.6
1.7
Fixed property
A11 costs directly related to the construction of the head office and
infrastructure at Midrand are capitalized.
Other operating assets
Other operating assets, consisting of furniture, office equipment,
computer equipment and motor vehicles, are written off in the year
of acquisition. Proceeds on disposal of these assets are reflected as
recoveries.
Interest received on development loans
Capitalized interest
Certain agreements for development loans provide for a moratorium
period in respect of the payment of interest. During this period,
interest is capitalized and becomes payable together with the loan
over the contract period. Interest so capitalized is treated as
capitalized interest, until such time as it is due and payable when it is
transferred to income as interest received.
Direct portion
Interest charged outside the moratorium period is capitalized and
transferred directly to income as interest received.
Investments
Listed government and public corporation stock are stated at the
lower of cost or market value on the item-by-item method. Where
cost contains premiums or discounts on purchase, such amounts are
amortized on a straight line basis over the period to redemption.
Capital market loans issued at a discount
The discount on issue of capital market loans is amortized over the
period of the repayment of these loans and is recorded as an
element of interest paid.
Grants
A11 grants received, other than those specifically earmarked, are
taken directly to the Development Fund.
Refund of taxes and duties
Refund of payroll taxes is reflected as other income and the refund of
general sales tax and duties is offset against expenditure.
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Notes to the financial statements
1990 1989
R000 R’OOO
2. Share capital
2.1 Authorized and subscribed
200 000 shares at a par value
of R10 000 each 2 000 000 2 000 000
2.2 Paid-up capital
20 000 shares at a par value
of R10 000 each 200 000 200 000
2.3 Callable capital
180 000 shares at a par value
of R10 000 each 1 800 000 1 800 000
3. General reserve
Ba1ar1ce at 1 April 167 552 129 289
Transfer from income statement 50 051 38 253
217 603 167 552
These funds are not distributable to
the members in the normal course
of business.
4. Development Fund
Balance at l Apri1 1 525 644 1 154 544
Contribution by SA 375 000 371 000
1 900 644 1 525 544
Commitments by the South African
government to the Development
Fund:
-outstanding under the first six-
year cycle of funding payable by
arrangement between the Bank
and the South African
government 215 700 215 700
-11; respect of the new five-year
cycle of funding agreed to
between the South African
government and the Bank in 1988
(in 1990 read values) 1 770 000 2 145 000
1 985 700 2 360 700
The Development Fund consists of
grants received and does not
constitute a liability.
22



Notes to the financial statements
M
1990 1989
R000 R’OOO
5. Capital market loans
DBSA local stock
Ba1ance at 1 April 89 712 136 624
Less: Redeemed/repurchased during
the year 6 254 46 812
84 458 89 712
Add: Reissued during the year 28 400 O
112 858 89 712
Less: N et discount to be amortized 18 002 8 966
Discount on issue of DBSA local stock 38 236 29 119
Less: Amortized 20 234 20 164
94 856 80 747
The authorised nominal value of local
registered stock is R112,868 million
(1989: R89,712 million). The discount
on the issue of R38,236 million
(1989: R29,119 million) will be
amortized over the period of the
repayment of these loans. The stock
carries a coupon rate of 10 per cent
per annum and Will be redeemed
over the period
31 October 1991 to 31 October 2001
as follows:
1- 3 years 6 230 6 230
3 years and 1onger 106 628 83 482
112 858 89 712
6. Capitalized interest
Balance at 1 April 132 S69 84 921
Interest capitalized 79 899 61 697
212 468 136 618
Less: Interest transferred to income
statement 5 019 3 949
207 449 132 669
An amount due and payable
during the next financial year
W111 be transferred to the income
statement from capitalized interest
as interest received. 7 878 6 019
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Notes to the financial statements
1990 1989
R000 R’OOO
1. Fixed assets
At cost 35 408 32 208
Building
Infrastructure
Infrastructure costs capitahzed
Less: Recovered
rThe head office has been constructed
on land donated to the Bank by the
South African government, being
portion 465 (a portion of portion 442)
ofthe farm Randjiesfontein 405,
registration division IR, measuring
25.0660 ha,
8. Loans
8.1 Development loans 2 309 082 1 550 752
Balance at 1 Aer 1 550 752 1 040 958
Loans advanced 729 161 493 163
Interest capitalized 138 814 85 919
Moratorium interest 79 899 51 597
Direct interest 58 915 34 322
2418727 1620040
Less: Repayments of capital and
interest7k 92 502
Transfer of capita1 and
interest due at 31 March 1990
to current assets
Reallocation to technical
62 950
grants
8.2 Other loans 104 245 106 495
Balance at 1 April 106 495 135 276
Less: Repayments of capitalT 2 250 28 781
2413327 1657247
acCapitad amount repayable during
the hextfinancia1year 75 246 47 961
TCapital amount repayable during
the next financia1 year 2 250 2 016
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Notes to the financial statements
h
1990 1989
R000 R’OOO
9. Investments
Fixed deposits 105 793 870 923
Listed government and public
corporation stockif 8 197 17 939
Negotiable certificates of deposit 15 008 23 000
128 998 411 862
500st price of stock 8 269 18 454
Maturity
O-1year 120 754 376 799
1- 3 years 4 626 29 797
Longer than 6 years 3 618 5 266
128 998 411 862
10. Net working capital
Current assets 53 014 16 791
Development loansT
- Capita1
-1nterest
Interest - investments
Accounts receivable
Bank balances and cash
Less: Current liabilities 10 195 11 596
Accounts payable and provisions 5 493 7 858
Interest payable on capital market
loans 4 702 3 738
42819 5195
TSince 31 March 1990, an amount of
R13, 104 mi1110n has been paid in
respect of development loans.
It is envisaged that of the remaining
amount of R3972 million, R3879
million will be recovered through
offset in the near future, While
R593 000 may have to be
rescheduled.
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ll.
12.
13.
14.
15.
Notes to the financial statements
1990
IFOOO
Interest received
InvesUnenw 59945
DevekxnnenHoans 63934
-Ihrectnnerest 58915
-Tmm$6ned&mnddenednwome 50w
Chherloans 13885
137764
Other income
Refundx-payroutaxes 3000
Advisory and agency services 623
Chher 709
4332
Interest paid
Interest on capital market loans 9 158
Discount on issue of DBSA stock amortized 80
Chher 95
9333
Auditory remuneration
Fortheaudh
-currentyear 106
-underprov$Knlpnoryear 3
Forcon$0nngsebnces
-interna1 management information system 157
2 on behalf of member states 174
-wxher 17
Expenses 12
469
Operating expenditure
Consuhank$fees 5956
Connnunmanoncoys 931
Daniproces$ng 1960
Cx0cerenmn 0
Staff-related 56 140
Subsknenceandtravel 5395
Cnher 4420
74 802
26
1989
R’OOO
68 591
38 271
34 322
3 949
15504
122 366
3 000
494
1 125
4619
12 572
1 349
13921
87
352
18
11
468
4 175
853
2 132
2 563
39 483
4 923
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55 045



Notes to the financial statements
E
1990 1989
16. Commitments and contingent R 000 R 000
liabilities
16. 1 Financing of the staff motor
scheme
Financing of the staff motor
scheme is done through a
financia1 institution. The Bank
guarantees the liabilities of its
employees in this regard. 3 290 3 795
16.2 Financing of the staff housing
scheme
Financing of the staff housing
scheme is partly done through
a banking institution.
Guarantees are issued by the
Bank in support of certain loans
granted. 3 763 4 040
1 6. 3 Collateral securities
Certain ofthe Bank’s
investments With building
societies serve as collateral
security for certain bonds
granted by building societies
to staff ofthe Bank. 293 420
16.4 Loan agreements
16.4. 1 Commitments in respect of
loan agreements concluded
but not fully disbursed l 680 480 1 214 195
16.4.2 Commitments in respect of
loan agreements approved by
the Bank and st111 under
consideration by the
prospective borrowers l 010 605 923 710
16. 5 Technical assistance projects
Assistance projects concluded
but not fully disbursed 6 958 5 720
16.5.1 Commitments in respect of
technical assistance projects
approved by the Bank and still
under consideration by the
prospective recipients 856 640
16.6 Loan guarantees
16.6.1 Guarantees issued by the Bank 45 000 102 000
16.6.2 Guarantees approved by the
Bank but still under
consideration by the
prospective borrowers 13 069 13 069
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17.
18.
19.
Notes to the financial statements
1990 1989
. R1000 R’OOO
16.7 Capital commltments
Commitments in respect Of
contracts for the completion of
the new head office of the Bank 0 626
Liability for normal income tax
No provision is made for income tax as the Bank is exempted
therefrom in terms of the Establishment Agreements
Pension Fund
An average number of 675 (19897586) employees were members of
the Development Bank Pension Fund to which the Bank contributed
R40 million (1989-R3 million). There were 7 (1989-5) beneficiaries to
whom benefits amounting to R59 779 (1989-R65 071) were paid. The
Fund is governed by the Pension Funds Act. It is a defined benefit
plan under which amounts to be paid as retirement benefits are
determined usually by reference to the employees! pensionable
remuneration and years of service to the Bank. Membership of the
Fund is compu1sory for all employees on the permanent staff. The Fund
was last valued at 31 March 1987 when it was found to be actuarialiy
sound. The evaluation of the Fund at 31 March 1990 is currently being
undertaken.
Notes to the cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March
19.1 Cash generated by operations
Net income 50 051 38 263
Non-cash items: Discount
amortized 80 4 331
50 131 42 594
19.2 Cash utilized to increase/
decrease( -) working capital
1ncrease/decrease(-) in
accounts receivable -715 1 215
Decrease(-) in interest
receivable - 825 - 3 023
Increase(e)/decrease in
accounts payabie and
provisions 2 365 -2 109
Increase(-)/decrease in interest
payable on capital market 1oans -964 1 951
- 139 - 1 966
193 Net increase in loans advanced
Loans advanced 729 161 493 163
Less: Capita1 repayments 37 223 58 134
691 938 435 029
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Auditors, report
Report of the auditors to the members ofthe Development Bank of Southern Africa,
We have examined the annual financial statements set out on pages 18 to 28.
Our examination included such auditing procedures as we con31dered necessary.
In our opinion these statements fairly present the financial position of the Development 
Bank
of Southern Africa at 31 March 1990 and the results of its operations fot the yeeIthen en
ded,
in conformity with generally accepted accounting practice for smular mstltutlons.
gmm
Ernst & Young
Chartered Accountants (SA)
29 May 1990
Johannesburg
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Overview of Bank activities
(Continued from page 16)
The utilization of resources
rThe human fhtahcml and mtotmat 10h resources ot’the Bank are used for develop
them support to the developing U)(JlOItS and countrtes m Southern Africa.Wh11e
the borrowers of the Bank are governments, parastatats and nongovernmental
development agencies, the utttmate Chents ot the Bank are the poor people and
disadvantaged commumttes In Southern AITICQ.
Progress by main development function
FigureIshowstheinvolvermzntoftheBahk mthestx math developmehtfuhctions
during the past fthzmcial year, whtte Annexute t hsts the 1hd1v1dua1 projects,
Region and state
The Bank has progressed well In Int’olvmq local communities in the planning Of
development. Thts ts also true for platmmtt at a stratemc level ,7 communities
contrtbute substahttatlyt0formulatmgqutdehttes torthe overall developmentof
specmc geographtcat areas, Which are either development I’teOHSt subregions
countrles or plannthg areas Withm countries.
The formulattoh Ofsuch strategtes or gutdetmes ts one of the tmportaht building
blocks for mtegrated regtonal development. These strategtes should be coherent
on a Spatial, functtonal and sectoral base, ’30 that the economies ofsubregions are
able to complement and supplement each other wtthm a regional economy
Likewise, the various sectors Within the regions should be developed on the basis
Of comparative advantages, thereby ensurmg the optimal use of resources,
Within the venous areas a diversity of parttctpahts IS found, ranging from the
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Zimbabwe
Botswana
Mocambique
.I "7 ast London
Cape Town Port Elizabeth
Industrial development
or deconcentration points
Self-goveming I
territory
l Metropolitan areas
Development
regions
-A-
various forms and levels of government to organized commerce and agriculture,
and including the various communities and entrepreneurs. It is an important
principle that all the above-mentioned groups participate effectively in the
planning processes. This participation takes place on two levels: firstly, in the
steering ofthe planning process, and secondly, in the provision of inputs to the
planning process. Such comprehensive participation encourages economic
empowerment at an early stage _ especially with the formulation of strategies that
Will provide the poor and underdeveloped communities with ways and means to
enter and participate in the economic system.
The planning of projects reflects a systematic process ranging from an analysis
of the planning area’s resource potential, needs and aspirations of the population,
constraints and opportunities to the formulation of development strategies.
Workshops with local communities are built into the process to ensure their
participation. Steering committees made up of all the affected groups also have
to approve specific phases of the process, thereby ensuring that they support and
are committed to the results of the planning process.
A regional approach has also been reinforced during the period under review.
In this approach coherent economic regions are highlighted for planning and
strategies rather than fragmented state entities
The above approach to and principles on development planning have been
introduced in specific projects, The Bank is technically and financially supporting
projects aimed atthe formulation of coherent development strategies for Regions
F and G In a subregional context, studies are currently under way for the Phala-
borwa/Lulekani/Namakgale area of Region G and the Stutterheim/Cathcart/
Komga area of Region D.
31
Development
regions
A1Western Cape in
B:
South Africa
Northern Cape in
South Afrtca; a
Bophuthatswana
district
: Orange Free State
and QwaQwa 1n
South Africa; a
Bophuthatswana
district
: Eastern Cape in
South Africa;
Clskei and
southern Transkei
: Natal and
KwaZulu in South
Africa; northern
Transket
Eastern Transvaal
and KaNgwane in
South Africa
: Northern
Transvaal,
Lebowa and
Gazankulu in
South Africa;
Venda



: Pretoria-
Witwatersrand
Vaal Triangle and
KwaNdebele in
South Africa;
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Western
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Overview of Bank activities
Rural and agricultural development
Economtc activtties 1h developing rural areas are both agncultural and hem:
agricultural, Agriculture and farmthg
development in most ofthese areas. Programmes and projects :itrected at smallr
holder farming prowde a strategy to therease the hving levels of rural dwellers
across a broad front, Both food secur ty and commetcaltmtto: ODJECTIK’GS are
served by such a strategy
’eITlalH ahImportant’.’eh1c1efor GCOHOITHC
The farrret’support programmefSP). c eStghedtosuppott EZIEPI’JIIIGSIUEHNhOi/jer
entrepreneurst ’Nhtle at the same ttme attehdtrtq to the needs of poor rural
commu lttestremamedthemattthtus ofmralandaqrtcutturatdevelopment 111
an effort to tmprove the entry of largely sehh sulmstence pool farmers MTG
commerCIal aqrtcuhure, ah tttter
m evalttatton was undertaken of a representattve
sample of t e FSP thdmcts mowed that the mam bettettt of the FSP 13 he
COhStde able extent to Whtch
thmkmg and aqricul uml pohcy
Of a Clear sh’tt away from dtrec
,
hts p
It Sou
’oqmmme has tttflttettced development
hem Ah lea. There are several examples
government thtetvehttoh and state-Control ed
product on towards a process ofpromotmq ecottomtc development by tmprov hg
farmer support serv ces to rural dwellers over a broad base Posmve stghs Ofthe
FSP encourz gmq fa mers mto ’
batgam hgpurposes,thereby1:
were 1dehtif ed. Ge tetallyt L110
IOUpS tot collecttve acttoh for commeICtal 8nd
creasmg theme deIlCIanon and independence
oxely structured approach supplymg serv1ces
based on demam and ettcouragthq paITlClpathH has greater positve
developme taleffectsthahcent
alcm
ttrolt vvhtch tendsto sttHe farmers thittatA/e
and therease thetr dependence on out51demanagementThere are encourag’hg
SlgHS that the FSP 13 hfluehcmg trachtiohal land tenure towards marketqelated
land use. These posmve observat 0113 suggest that more emphasts should be placed
N
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Figure 1
Financial
contribution to
approved
projects by main
development
function as at
31 March 1990
Region
and state
Rural and
agricultural
development
Urban
development
Business and
entrepree
neurial
development
Human
resources
development
# Infra-
structure
on the FSP approach, in which case greater attention will have to be paid to
difficulties still limiting the impact of the FSP on rural economies, namely poor
understanding of farmer support philosophy by both implementing agents and rural
dwellers, weak farmer organizations at local and central levels which are often
poorly integrated with implementing institutions. inadequate managerial and
administrative skills, and ineffective extension and training services,
In addition to the PSP, commercial agricultural production was addressed by
supporting new settlement projects and, where appropriate, the rehabilitation of
existing schemes whose development impact has been seriously questioned. The
existing schemes invariably involve irrigated farming based on costly and largely
ineffective central management, and sophisticated, capital-intensive production
systems. In the planning or restructuring phases of these schemes, the Bank
emphasizes the importance of design based on human, economic and institutional
considerations rather than on solely technical ones. Experience has shown that
successful settlement is invariably dependent on thorough attention being paid to
human, economic and organizational issues, such as ways of attracting
suitable farmers, participation in the planning and running of the project and hence
commitment to it, and a reasonable chance to secure profits, as well as the functional
integration of organizations surrounding and supporting the scheme. This then
provides the context within which improved, but compatible, technology can be
introduced to accelerate economic development. One of the main objectives of any
settlement project should be to support farmers to assume full responsibility for
decision-making and risk-takingi
With the Bank’s objective of alleviating poverty in mind, more attention was focused
on how to reach the majority of inhabitants in rural areas who are essentially not
catered for by existing approaches such as farmer settlement projects and the
farmer support programme. The result was a policy framework for community
actions, known as the community support programme. which entails mobilizing
people, building appropriate institutions and supporting socioeconomic activities.
This approach also defines the role of the Bank in supporting such actions. The main
development objective of these community support actions is to enable and increase
the capacity of individual members of communities to initiate, plan, implement and
manage their own development initiatives on a suitable basis at the local level,
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Support for community action increases the economic capacity of individuals and
groups, and enables them to benefit from and contribute posmvely to overall
economic development,
The value ofsound policy and strategy formulation to focus attention on issues such
as the mobilization of human and physical resources in rural areas was increasingly
recognized by borrowers. The Bank assisted in the preparation of guidelines for
a number of strategic development planning exercises. A fundamental principle
confirmed by this activity is that, for policy and development strategies to be
relevant, they should to a large extent reflect the needs and priorities of the majority
of inhabitants of rural areas.
Village pilot project
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Recipient: Gazankulu Government
DBSA grant: R182 959
Total cost: R305 760
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Urban development
The role ofthe Bank ll’l urban developrr eht has changed over the past years from
tle initial phase of primarily emphasizing the f
OCH)
eeh influenced by the marked Char ges in the
hvironmeht.
jese changes reflected stricter monetary and fiscal
’CTP-HCDU
$
and in all other urban areas. This no
infrastructure but also worsened the pressures or
o W Within the Bank, but also in the environment W’
complexes in a regional, subregiorial and sectora
In the light ofthe above, the Bank started to focus mo
ihahcihg of infrastructure to
mphasizing a comprehensive approe oh. This shift in emphasis coincided With
Iban development becoming a major focus area Within the development arena
rSouthern Africa. The role of the Bank it the urban development field has therefore
social, financial and political
policy and were accompanied
y the abolition ofcertain acts ofthe Soutn African Parliament, resulting in a marked
1r crease in the rate of urbanization, both h the metropolitan areas of Southern Africa
only put pressure on existing physical
the financial and institutional
capacities ofindividual local authorities, nongovernmental organizations (NGOs)
a’id even emerging private sector institutions Furthermore, a realization grew, hot
thih Which the Bank operates,
t1" at a greater emphasis should be put on the economic linkages Within urban
perspective.
e on its support and facilitating
role in structural economic reform and the integration of projects to achieve
maximum multiplication benefits, This approach
mplied a strong linkage With
business and entrepreneurial activities to improve the economic base of urban
areas. It also implied the utilization of these fihar
Cial means to strengthen the
institutional and administrative capacity to establish and maintain public sector
assets.
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To achieve this and alleviate poverty by improving the quality of urban life over
the full spectrum, the Bank now emphasizes the correct policy and strategy
framework, local economic opportunities (over the full spectrum), and increasmg
the financial resources and institutional capacity. This approach is applied firstly
through urban structural reform programmes and secondly through the formulation
of comprehensive urban development support plans. With the greater emphasis
on structural economic reform and the financial and institutional constraints in the
urban environment, the Bank initiated its first financial adjustment programme in
an urban area. The focus of this type of programme for urban authorities is in the
first place to stabilize the worsening financial position of a local authority by
balancing expenditure and revenue and then, through a structured and coherent
approach, to address the financial restructuring of such local authorities by ensuring
the optimal use of all resources It is anticipated that the Bank will play an increasing
role in this regard in future.
The increased focus on structural economic reform led to the initiation of urban
development support programmes (UDSP). The UDSP concept was developed in
the light of the Bank’s role in structural economic reform and is a programme inwhich
strategies are devised to synchronize activities and projects to enhance their
development impact and thus the impact on urban poverty. The UDSP focuses on
the support, co-ordination and integration of the roles of the various institutions
involved in the development of local urban areas and provides a vehicle through
which the Bank can intluence rational coherent approaches to urban development
covering the full spectrum of urban life. whether Bank-funded or not. In this respect,
Clear role definition between the public and private sector is important and the
harmonization of projects covering commercial access, infrastruture, education.
social and recreation facilities, housing and the full built environment is essential.
Urban-specific problems that faced Southern Africa in the past year were, among
others, the increase in urbanization which highlighted the problems of housing, the
limited financial and economic base for local authorities and institutional constraints
which were aggravated by political instability and violence in some urban areas.
Within the limits of these constraints, the Bank persisted in advocating a
comprehensive approach to urban development while applying the principles of
appropriate technology, user charging, community involvement and the
involvement of the private sector in a more innovative way than in the past
Experience during the past year again emphasized the importance of community
participation in all aspects of urban development. It is clear that the success of any
urban development project is to a large extent determined by the success with
involving not only the end-users but also the community as a whole.
On the geographical level, there was a relative increase in Bank involvement in the
metropolitan areas of South Africa. This does not detract from the fact that, in terms
of the Bank’s mission, a balanced approach to support urban economic
development in the areas further away from the metropolitan core regions was
maintained,
Continued attention was paid to development policy and strategy. The Bank has
now reached a point where it is able to provide inputs to the formulation of policy,
not only on a national and regional level, but also on the level of specific local
authorities With the existence ofthe Urban Development Group in the Bank for a
number of years, it is now in a position to make a contribution to policy and strategy
on the urban level based on its own practical experience. In this regard, Bank staff
members played an important role in the South African Housing Advisory
Committee and were prominent in the strategy subcommittee appointed by the SA
Housing Ministers to break the financial logjam in low-income housing. This led to
the newly-approved financial incentives for low-income housing (now known as the
Urban Foundation initiative). incorporating a loan guarantee company by the private
sector to mobilize additional funds.
During the past year it was clear that the level of institutional development within
urban areas remains one of the major constraints for sustainable urban economic
development, Therefore, as in other less developed areas worldwide, institutional
developmentw1llremain an area to be focused on during the coming year. There
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is growing realization that a distinction between political decisiommaking on the
one hand and effective and efficient administration on the other, could in some
instances provide the basis for sustainable urban development during the current
transitional phase of the constitutional process.
In recognizing subregional economic unity and focusing efforts on increasing the
economic activity, the introduction of financial discipline and further institutional
development is important. Projects supporting the above approach should be multi-
sectoral, enhancing regional and subregional growth and thus improving the quality
of life of the urban people of Southern Africa.
Small loan company pilot scheme (Multi-region)
. V e t
W 1 ...’t. trr’w
Borrower The Group Credit Company
DBSA fmance: R1 500 000
Urban Foundatton finance: R500 000
Total cost: R2 000 000
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Business and entrepreneurial development
The busmess and entrepreneunaldevelopmentfut1ct1011111the Bank supportst
development 0113113111888 and entrepreneurml act1v1t1es among the chsadvahtage
commuh1t1es of Southern Afhca, The Obtechve 18 to 1de11t1ty constrmhts to It
entry into economic sectors and to prowde support111re1110’v’111gthese constmmts
111 order to moblhze the phvate sector to take part 111 the development process .11
(1dd1t10ht emphasm 1sp1aced 011 pmv1d111qsupport tot11eV1591011111qthe potehhal Of
emerging entrepreneurs to be able to co111petvet1c1e11t1y1111ti ottectwely 111 tte
economy
(DQfD
The Bank has encouraged 1h; bnn’htwets to (111/e telatwety mote att011t1011 t0
appropnate support prothhtms tot 100111 01111711111117 bus messes at d
entrepreneurs, I11o1de1t1:)e11s111’ethat 111hlt111’esct11ce11,1so111ces are, allocated o
(grassnmts; 1.11’1nocts; 111volv1111101111111111111ehttept011M111; the 0111phds1s 011 sup
port
to 11111118111111 devolmmhoht hats; been 311111011 towards11101111121111111hqherlevelof
pnvate sector 11e11t1c1pttt11’111, I’111ther111o1to, 1111111st11t11 deve opment support h
as
S1111111te’111oo11341y t11111edt11w111’dsz1 10111011111t1pptmchWhetemdevelopments will
only be 13111111011011 when there 13 11 (70111111111111vo 1111111 11t11qe 101, 111dustr1a
1
develophmht (7011111111011 W11h othm’ 011101101111c sectms 111111 111 the 1eq1o11 for the
ec011011’111: 1111.111) 101 111’l_)(1111z1’1t1011. Such 1111 apptoach W111 result 111 pub
hc sector
resources; ht1(r11111111q:1v111lz1ble1m dowlopmqthoe111e1’1’1111c etttrep eheurm less
developed Ct111111111111t1ess across a broad spect1’11111othsectorst
,
As 111 other eco1101111c soctms, the Bank 1111ects 118 t111a11c11q of st 1ah bushtess
(,ievelopmont through approprmte11111,)101116211t111qaqehts D 11mg the 1h1t1a1 years
of operahon, these 1111plo111e11t111q agents were mostly parastatal development
corporations Wlth then operahons d11’ected predonhhartly at the needs of
entreprehmms 011131de 0f the urban areas 111 South Afnctt Notw1thstahd1hg the
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x_h
success of these development programmes in providing socioeconomic uplift-
ment and addressing the imbalances of the past, a renewed emphasis was placed
on providing similar support in the underdeveloped urban communities in South
Africa.
Where it was found that parastatal implementing agents do not reach the emerg-
ing entrepreneur at grassroots level in urban areas, the problem was addressed
by extending the Banks existing support programme to non-government organi-
zations (NGOs) as implementing agents in these areas. As such an implementing
agent has to meet certain conditions in operational capacity to remain effective,
the Bank provides appropriate support where necessary to strengthen the institu-
tional capacity of NGOs. Involvement and support in urban areas is illustrated by
projects such as supporting small contractors in the PWV area and emerging
entrepreneurs at grassroots level in Khayelitsha in the Western Cape.
The experience gained in this regard will, in the coming year, be developed further
to expand the present small business development programme to where the need
is highest for social economic upliftment in the accelerated urbanization process.
There was a high degree of community support during the past period,
notwithstanding the political and economic change taking place. While many of
the other sectors in the economy were not spared the negative effects of this period
of change, the small business development programme did not experience too
negative an impact of these conditions.
Triple Trust business development project
The protect entatls support and strengthehmg of the ethtmg act1v1t1es of the
Trtple Trust Orgamzatton 1n the Cape Penmsula These act1v1t1esmclude1dent1fyv
mg and assxstmg potehttal emergmg entrepreneurs from the ranks of the unem-
ployed 1h townshtps such as Khayehtsha. Guguletu and Crossroads,
A three-pronged balanced a351stance programme was dev1sed by the Trtple Trust
Organizattoht
_ a competency-based sktlls trammg programme atmed at trammg pathetpants
to manufacture products for whtch a market demand was estabhshed (Netghe
bourhood Trammg Trust)
a mtm-loan scheme to ass15t pathetpants 1h obtathmg eqmpmem and raw
matertals to establish home 1hdustr1es (SelfaHelp Fmancmg Trust)
’ . the establishment Of a centralized buymg and marketmg organtzatton for the
bulk purchase of raw matertals and equ1pment tor pathetpahts, as well as
prowdmg an entree mto target markets through a collechve marketmg effort
(Afrtca Tradthg Coioperattve Trust)
To enable the Tnple Trust Orgamzahon to overcome certam mstituttonal detheh-
CleS durmg tts estabhshment phase mstttuttonabmlqu support m the form of a
techmcal asststance loan was also approved
Nelghbourhood Trammg Trust ts fully dependent on grants from the prwate
sector for tts fmahcmg needs whlle DBSA fthahmal ass15tahce IS apphed towards
asststmg the latter two trusts.
Borrower: The Triple Trust Organization
DBSA finance: R1 625 000
Total cost: R3 028 000
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Infrastructure development
In the year under review, infrastructure development contmued to be a major focus
ofthe Bahkts overall development acttoh. Thts trend IS rehected 1n the cumulattve
relative share of mfrastructure development m the Bank’s total fmahc1al
contributions to date, at just over 40 per cent. As noted 1h prevmus years. the
relatively hlgh proportion of hhaHCtal resources devoted to thfrastructure
development 1s due to the inherent capltal-mtehslvehess of most mfrastructure
protects m the fields of transportatton, water resource energy and
telecommunications developrr eht.
As in past years the Bank’s support Of Infrastructure developt tent was based on
a phased, incremental approac 1 to the imprwement o the essehttal physmal fabric
of a region or subreglom where Justifted by needs t 11d economlc realltiest Thts
approac .mtum, has always been seen and wasetttpt asued ax ew mthe bastyeart
as being one Where mfrastruct re development 1s m a local env1r0nmeht directed
at enhahcmg the cortlpamttve advantage of an area. Thls teethtates self-sustaihable
growth a d prtvate sector parttclpatiott m the poten tat ecohomtc development
opportumtles Agathst thls bac ground, the Banks 11 volveme 1t 1h infrastructure
developr em projects contthued to be measured doalhst the ngorous crtterta Ofthe
projects economlc mettt and development unpack itsa pproprtatehess in a regtonal
context, 1 s internal sustathabitty and 1tsf111a11c1alv1ab1hty
As addtt 011s to and refuteme 1ts of the above part meters he Bank devoted
renewed attehhon to What may be termed people issues. to recognize and help
alleviate the phqht ofcormnumties suffering poverty and hardshtp. To this end much
attention was glveh to the grassroots challenges of labourrmtehstve construction
methods, local labour enhancement and valueiaddmg, the max1mum use Of
local goods and materials in consttuction protects, the mobilization and
x
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technical solutions which meet specific local circumstances and a search for
Overview of Bank activities
M
encouragement of emerging small entrepreneurs the securing of people
partic1pation and support the recognition of commumty and personal affordability,
innovative lowecost answers. Various Bank- -supported infrastructure projects which
incorporated all or some of the above aspects were approved for implementation
in 1989/90.
It is significant to record the increased emphasis placed by the Bank, With the
support of its borrowers and participants, on the role of structural economic reform.
In terms of infrastructure development, this trend has been reflected ever more
strongly under the economic, technical, institutional, financial and other parameters
of the preparahon and appraisal of infrastructure projects,
Xolo Road: K waZqu
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Recipient: KwaZulu Government
DBSA grant: R158 000
DBSA loan: R683 000
Total cost: R900 000
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Human resources development
Duringthe past year the Bank adjusted the thrust of its operations in support of human
resources development so as to generate a common understanding ofthe need for
and the nature ofcomprehensive strategies for human resource development, The
objective was to optimize the contribution that such projects were making towards
a fundamental Change in the provision of education and training 1h Southern
Africa A simplified model ofnational education and trainmg systems. htghhghting
the major components of such systems as well as the hnks between these
components, was introduced in order to prowde a useful mstrumeht, both in
identifying where fundamental Changes are necessary, and 1h dev1sing strategies
for the implementatton ofsuch changes
In addition, trends which emerged in prev1ous years have continued to receive
attenttoh during the year under review, in particular teacher training, The latter has
attracted significant financial resources parttcularty 1n the provision ofacademic
physical facilities and equipment, Substantial attention to developing a strategic
framework forteacher training has resulted in a redtrectioh ofefforts fromthe pre-
service to the m-service tramihg ofteachers and ts expected to continue in future.
In fact. the groundwork has been laid for a much larger investment 1h m-service
trainmg Of teachers, beginning with several ptlot projects
Projects m commercial, technical and agricultural training have also continued to
receive attention and support. For example, the creation of a Commercial-Technical
High School, whtch IS to serve as a pocket ofexcellence in its field, was started in
Umlazi, KwaZulu, durmg the years In the sphere of agricultural training, the
upgrading ofTsolo College and the construction of a new college near Thohoyandou
have concentrated on providing agricultural training directed at the needs ofthe
region and minimizing the duplication of facilities.
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a
Equal mention must also be made of proj ects in health-related training. Substantial
progress was made with several colleges of nursing. and the Bank is now involved
in a pioneering project to establish training for primary health-care workers,
including community-based medical doctors.
Special attention was given to the support of projects aimed at grassroots
development through the provision of training associatedwith entrepreneur support
programmes. Such appropriate training components were introduced to a variety
of farmer support programmes, business support programmes and other
community-based programmes.
A further change of emphasis in activities - from investment in bricks and mortar
to investment in the economic components of education and training- has been
effected in the past year, for example the need to support the development of
effective courseware, particularly for use in non-formal education and training.
E
Folwem’ Community Learning Centre: KwaZqu
The Mfolweni community members organized themselves to establish a creche,
their first development priority. Encouraged by their success, they then
approached the KwaZulu Training Trust (KTT) in 1987 to assist them in establishing
a community learning centre. Their motivation was to acquire a venue, which they
could own and control, in which they could offer adult classes of their own choice
and in which they could also hold functions. KwaZulu Training Trust and the Bank
worked with the community representatives to verify community interest at a mass
meeting of the Community Body called through advertising on radio and on taxis.
An executive committee was elected, a constitution prepared, legal formalities and
government regulations were complied with. a bank account was opened and
community contributions collected.
A planning committee consisting of the community, KwaZulu Training Trust, the
Bank and private sector technical consultants have been working together to
determine needs and draw up physical, training. administration and financial plans
for the centre. The private sector has donated the cost of levelling of the site, while
KTT has investigated skills and materials availablity in Mfolweni and adjacent areas
and liaised with a local entrepreneur to increase production of concrete blocks to
an adequate quantity and standard for the project. The building has been planned
for implementation by KTT. with the community as its own contractor, and the use
of local labour. skills, entrepreneurs and materials. Only minimal use will be made
of non-local input. KTTls technical consultants will manage the project.
Phase I of the project will consist of one large and two smaller training rooms, an
administration and resource office, and a co-ordinator’s llatleti The community
conducted its own needs assessment and has identified the following initial learning
requirements: driving, arts and crafts. cooking, sewing and knitting, literacy,
first-aid/health, gardening, poultry raising, road safety, and toy- and candle-
making. They will use these basic adult education skills for improvement of their
quality of life and to assist with work seeking. Progress to the next level of education
workshops for technical skills training and production is part of Phase II and
production units with market stalls part of Phase III of the project, The adjacent
Folweni Secondary School will have negotiated access to this facility. Additional
support to successfully trained entrepreneurs will be provided by KTT arid
KwaZulu Finance and Investment Corporation as part of this small business
development programme.
Moderate course fees will be charged if courses are not free from the providers
and rental income from functions is expected to be good, The centre Will be run
by the Executive Committee, which reflects an equal balance of power groups
within the community. with KTT’s assistance initially. The project will be completed
during 1990
Borrower: KwaZulu Training Trust
Bank finance: R595 514
Total cost: R718 303
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Progress in structural economic reforms
In addition to its investment and technical assistance support. the Bank continued
to address structural economic reform programmes.
Three main aspects addressed during the year were development policy, planning
and strategy; technical and environmental approaches; and structural institutional
reform.
Development policy, planning and strategy
It has long been recognized that a sound economic policy framework is a pre-
requisite for the planning and implementation of effective and efficient
programmes and projects. The experience of development agencies in success-
ful developing countries highlights the fact that the behaviour of people is
influenced by the signals they receive from government policies and decisions.
Therefore, although governments in developing countries play an important role
in initiating development through programmes and projects. a prerequisite for
sustainable development is the fostering and development of an entrepreneurial
and creative behaviour among its people.
Based on these experiences, it can therefore be said that the key to a meaningful
and self-sustaining economic empowerment process in developing countries is that
both policy and strategy should focus on creating favourable socia1.econornic and
political conditions and on enhancing the capability of the people by supporting
activities which upgrade the level of skills and extend access to resources. It is only
in a sociopolitical environment in which the creativity and productivity of ordinary
people are not constrained that each individual or group of people is motivated to
be self-reliant and to take risks,
Within a policy framework conducive to the economic empowerment of people,
a sound development planning process needs to be instituted and development
strategies formulated This process contributes to the effective allocation and
efficient utilization of scarce public sector resources and also affords all groups of
people the opportunity to participate on equal terms in the planning processes,
Participation takes place at two levels, firstly, in the steering of the planning process
and, secondly, in the provision of inputs to the planning process. It thus provides
poor communities with ways to enter and participate in the economic system by
being part of the formulation of strategies, thereby ensuring the accommodation
of their priorities and increased access to resources. The development planning
process followed by the Bank thus give practical effect to the principle of economic
empowerment through the formulation of coherent development strategies for
regions, subregions and specific rural and urban areas. as well as the public
investment programmes derived from these strategies.
Environmental and technical programmes
En Vironmental
One of the greatest threats facing the natural environment in Southern Africa is
poverty, as the poor are often solely dependent on dwindling natural resources for
survival. This, coupled with a high population growth, means that appropriate
economic development is necessary to ensure the sustained utilization of the natural
environment. Difficulties arise, however, when logical, long-terrn approaches must
be traded off against the short-term needs of the poor who quite justifiably are more
concerned with day-to-day survivaii
Appropriate environmental approaches must be introduced as early as possible
into development projects, from conception through to construction and operation
and even up to decommissioning, where appropriate. These efforts must be
carefully balanced with the numerous other needs of the community as well as their
ability. and the ability of the institutions which serve them, to implement policies and
projects. The developing areas have the opportunity to avoid the negative
environmental consequences of economic growth being experienced by
developed nations. While in the past. environmental concerns and development
K
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have been seen as being at Ioggerheads, it is now clear that these are mutually
consistent objectives.
In order to ensure the achievement of the Bank’s objectives in an environmentally
responsible manner. an Environment Unit has been established at the Bank.
Progress has been made by tackling environmental issues at regional and sectoral
pIanning levels. Environmental evaluations have become part of the overall
preparation, appraisal and implementation of projects and programmes In this way
positive environmental impacts Will be enhanced, while negative impacts will be
mitigated against. Besides addressing environmental concerns in present
programmes and projects, attention will also be given to directly retarding or
reversing environmental degradation.
Technical
The attention given to socio-economic development priorities in Southern Africa
has meant a move away from projects conceived solely on a technical basis. The
broader analysis and preparation process followed in the Bank’s approach to
projects has resulted in technical alternatives becoming part of the milieu in which
decision-making takes place. This has created the need for more substantial
investigations into the economic rationale for projects prior to technical design,
whereby technical options are evaluated on their economic costs and benefits
rather than technical excellence alone. The project preparation process leading
to appraisal and an investment decision now includes assessment of cost-
effectiveness during the Iife-cycIe of projects and in particular the analysis of other
project-related issues, such as institutional capacity, community involvement in the
choice of appropriate technical solutions and the IseIf-heip’ project approaches
Appropriate technological developments and their use in projects have been
supported to achieve broader socio-economic impact. Technologies which
maximize the use of local resources in the form of materials, entrepreneurs and
labour have been promoted amongthe professions and their clients. In particular,
building systems which utilize local skills, labour and materials are now increasingly
being accepted. New technical approaches in project management and
procurement procedures have increasingly become accepted practice, as a
departure from the standard construction industry procedures, to encourage a
wider economic deveiopment impact on projects.
Structural and institutional reform
Experience has shown that the institutional capacity of the borrower has a pivotal
influence on the success of development programmes A further prerequisite for
successful development, especially in programmes with complex socio-econornic
outputs, is the extent to which the ultimate beneficiaries are involved in programme
design and implementation, as well as in the eventual management of certain
programmes.
In view ofthese factors, the Bank deemed it necessary both to increase the level
of its expertise in institutional and participatory issues, and to ensure that proper
attention is paid to these factors during appraisal and implementation. This has
enabled the Bank to pay attention to the institutionaI capacity of borrowers and
implementing agents for aII types of programmes and projects, as weII as to the
nature, extent and credibility of the process, through which the intended
beneficiaries are placed in a position to participate in the development process.
In view of the large number of borrowers institutions involved in the development
field, it is necessary to institute a process whereby the organizational strengths and
weaknesses of these institutions are monitored on an ongoing basis. This is
necessary both to ensure that investment projects are adequately implemented
and managed to gain the maximum benefit for the intended beneficiaries, and also
to assist borrowers in overcoming institutional problems. To establish the necessary
process, considerable development work was done on the design of the Borrowers!
Appraisal and Adjustment System. This will provide an up-to-date information
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Overview of Bank activities
base on all borrower institutions, and Will form the basis for meaningful organization
development support to borrowers.
The emphasis on institutional and participatory issues in the development field is
in line With international trends in development, and With the Bank’s commitment
to playing a meaningful role in the Southern African development arena. Ongoing
attention to these fields should not add complexity to the process, but should add
depth and realism, and will enhance the value of investment in development.
Geographical scope of activities
Figure 2 depicts the involvement of the Bank in the nine development regions
representative of the membership of the Bank as well as in non-member
neighbouring countries.
rPhe involvement of the Bank in these areas depends on the initiative and progress
with development planning and project identification and preparation ofborrowers
in each region While the Bank will continue to concentrate its support programme
in the areas within the membership area of the Bank, it intends to continue
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with limited activities in non-member neighbouring countries for projects which
have benefits for existing members.
During 1989/90 the Bank also continued to administer projects on a contract basis
for the South African Department of Foreign Affairs and the Development Fund of
Namibia. A total number of 19 projects were administered on behalf of the South
African Department of Foreign Affairs and 12 projects on behalf of the Development
Fund of Namibia.
Flow of projects
The trends established in the first years of operation of the Bank continued during
the past financial year, as shown in Figure 3.
The inflow of project applications continued, with the cumulative number of projects
accepted into the pipeline tota11ing 1 330 projects, representing a total expected
financial commitment of approximately R9 340 million.
During the year, 107 new projects, representing a financial commitment by the Bank
of R1 222 million, were approved A further R142 million was approved to provide
for cost escalations experienced on projects in implementation. This level of the
support of the Bank for projects brought the cumulative total financial contribution
committed by the Bank to projects to R4 894 million at the end of the 1989/90
financial year, compared with R3 818 million at the end of the previous year.
There was also a significant increase in funds approved for technical assistance
as a result of increasing attention to policy, planning, institutional and financial
development issues, namely R43, 1 million (including R30 million bridging finance
to Lesotho) for 1989/90 compared with R238 million in the previous year.
Borrowers also continued to make use of the preparation assistance offered by the
Bank to assist them in mobi1izingthe expertise required for preparation of pIOJects.
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Overview of Bank activities
During the year, 24 preparation assistance loans were approved, amounting to
R7 million.
Flow of funds
Past and expected How of funds for approved projects as well as the cumulative
financial commitments of the Bank are depicted in Figure 4. The flow of funds on
a project is directly related to progress achieved with its implementation. The
cumulative total financial contribution is reHected in disbursed and undisbursed
amounts.
The actual flow of funds achieved thus far is consequently below the level which
could be expected from the strong rise in the level of new commitments entered
into annually by the Bank. This can be ascribed to delays experienced after the
approval of projects. Nevertheless, good progress has been achieved, especially
during the past two years, as a result of active attention by both borrowers and the
Bank to constraints and delays experienced. This resulted in actual disbursement
amounting to R731 million compared with R495 , 5 million achieved during 1988/89.
It is estimated that approximately R865 million will be disbursed during 1990/91.
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Region
and state
Rural 6:
a gricultural
development programme: Project I (investment):
Annexure 1: Development programme
Approved investment and technical assistance projects, 1989/90
Region D
Ciskei de facto population census
(technical assistance):
Borrower: Ciskei Government
DBSA finance: R60 600
Total cost: R60 600
Region G
Malamulele subregional economic
planning study(technica1 assistance):
Recipient: Gazankulu Government
DBSA grant: R148 197
Total cost: R247 000
Thabazimbi - Northam economic
planning study (technical assistance):
Recipient: Regional Development
Advisory Council - Region G
DBSA grant: R150 250
Total cost: R338 250
Financing and management of Venda
state debt and deficit(technica1
assistance):
Borrower: Venda Government
DBSA finance: R100 000
Total cost: R113 000
Region I
Wolmaransstad district development
proposals workshop (technical
assistance):
Recipient: Wo1maransstad
Afrikaanse Sakekamer
DBSA grant: R3 591
Total cost: R20 491
Region B
Heuningvlei livestock farmer support
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R654 510
Totalcost:R149151O
Bophuthatswana consolidation land
farmer settlement: Ganyesa farms
(investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R3 742 000
Total cost: R16 521 000
Region C
South African Development Trust
farmer settlement: Excelsior farms -
Phase I (investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R1 304 379
Total cost: R4 693 460
Region D
Transkei national agricultural
economic development plan
(technical assistance):
Borrower: Transkei Government
DBSA finance: R144 500
Total cost: R150 000
Region E
Mhlatuze irrigation: Biyela farmer
support project (investment):
Borrower: KwaZulu Government



Borrower: KwaZu1u Finance and
Investment Corporation
DBSA finance: R3 722 159
Total cost: R3 722 159
Coconut and cashewnut research
project (technical assistance):
Borrower: KwaZulu Finance and
Investment Corporation
DBSA finance: R979 920
Total Cost: R2 997 000
Region F
KaNgwane village community
support programme: Project I
(investment/technical assistance):
Borrower: KaNgwane Economic
Development Corporation
DBSA finance: R177 900
Total cost: R335 900
Region G
Expansion of Lebowakgomo small
farmer broiler farms (investment):
Borrower: Lebowa Government
Borrower: Lebowa Development
Corporation
DBSA finance: R4 997 540
Total cost: R4 997 640
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Urban
development
Annexure 1: Development programme
Lowveld afforestation project
(investment):
Borrower: Lebowa Government
DBSA finance: R4 392 000
Total cost: R4 794 000
Lebowa farmer settlement coffee
project II: Zoeknog(1nvestment)z
Borrower: Lebowa Development
Corporation
DBSA finance: R30 308 000
Total cost: R35 957 000
Majeje agricultural development,
Phase 1, Loan 4 (production inputs)
(investment):
Borrower: Gazankulu Development
Corporation
DBSA finance: R4 108 579
Total cost: R4 108 579
Dzindi agricultural development
(investment):
Borrower: Venda Government
Borrower: Agriven
DBSA Finance: R21 817 370
Total cost: R36 342 750
Region H
KwaNdebele farmer support
programme I: Consolidation
land - Project II (investment):
Borrower: KwaNdebele Government
Borrower: KwaNdebele National
Development Corporation
DBSA finance: R16 542 000
Total cost: R30 349 000
Multi-region
Agricultural development plan:
North-Eastem Natal/KwaZulu sub-
region(technica1 assistance):
Recipient: Regional Development
Advisory Council
DBSA grant: R128 900
Total cost: R195 700
Region B
Pampierstad Unit 2 water reticulation
(investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R1 758 800
Total cost: R1 977 200
Taung Village: Sewage treatment
works(ir1vestment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R415 000
Total cost: R537 330
Region C
Thaba1Nchu - Selosesha Urban
Development Programme:
Upgrading of electricity, water
reticulation and sewerage
reticulation municipal services
(investment):
Borrower: Thaba’Nchu Town Council
DBSA finance: R1 585 270
Total cost: R2 270 070
Utility area at Puthaditjhaba
(investment):
Borrower: Qwaqwa Government
DBSA finance: R11 451 000



Total cost: R12 600 000
Region D
Dimbaza urban development
programme: Installation of high-mast
1ights(investment):
Borrower: Ciskei Government
DBSA finance: R550 000
Total cost: R585 000
Kwanobuhle urban infrastructure:
Connector services (investment):
Borrower: Kwanobuhle City Council
DBSA finance: R3 235 000
Total cost: R3 235 000
Region E
KwaMakutha rehabilitation of
sewerage reticulation (investment):
Borrower: KwaZu1u Government
DBSA finance: R1 077 400
Total cost: R1 457 350
Sundumbili sewage works extension
- Phase I (investment):
Borrower: KwaZulu Government
DBSA finance: R5 155 000
Total cost: R5 837 000
Ezakheni electrical infrastructure:
Phase II/I (investment):
Borrower: KwaZulu Government
DBSA finance: R30 474 000
Total cost: R32 955 000
Ngwelezana: Electrical reticulation
and street lighting - Unit B
(investment):
Borrower: KwaZulu Government
DBSA finance: R3 172 000
Total cost: R5 912 000
Mpumalanga: Rehabilitation of
streets and stormwater (investment):
Borrower: KwaZulu Government
DBSA finance: R5 372 040
Total cost: R6 522 200
K
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Annexure 1: Development programme
Sundumbili roads upgrading and
rehabilitation: Phase I (investment):
Borrower/Recipient: KwaZulu
Government
DBSA finance and grant: R5 591 000
Total cost: R5 666 000
Mzamba urban development plan
(technical assistance):
Recipient: Transkei Government
DBSA grant: R35 000
Total cost: R42 400
Region F
Kanyamazane Project 1: Structure and
town centre planning(technica1
assistance):
Borrower: KaNgwane Government
DBSA finance: R270 009
Total cost: R270 009
Region G
Thohoyandou -formu1ation of
development plan: Phase I (technical
assistance):
Borrower: Venda Government
DBSA finance: R55 000
Total cost: R55 000
Masisi urban infrastructure
(investment):
Borrower: Venda Government
DBSA finance: R4 658 023
Total cost: R6 618 885
Venda fire service (investment):
Borrower: Venda Government
DBSA finance: R5 417 614
Total cost: R5 636 460
Region H
Extensions to Klipgat sewage
treatment plant (investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R18 801 400
Total cost: R18 801 400
Construction of Kwaggafontein
commuter routes - Phase I
(investment):
Borrower: KwaNdebe1e Government
DBSA finance: R17 733 000
Total cost: R17 761 000
Daveyton bulk water, sewage, roads
and electricity services: Etwatwa
East _ Phase 1: Element 11
(investment):
Borrower: Daveyton Town Council
DBSA finance: R3 833 000
Total cost: R4 033 000
Electrical reticulation of 1 400 sites in
Etwatwa West (investment):
Borrower: Daveyton Town Council
DBSA finance: R2 210 000
Total cost: R3 470 000
Region I
Mogwase units 4 and 5 and Bodirello
bulk water supply (investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R3 306 000
Total cost: R4 050 000
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Multi-region
Bophuthatswana local authority
policy and legislative framework
(technica1 assistance):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R108 000
Total cost: R120 000
Neighbouring countries
Butha-Buthe village Project I-
Engineering works, supervision and
compensation (investment):
Borrower: Lesotho Highlands
Development Authority
DBSA finance: R22 700 000
Total cost: R24 000 000
Region A
Triple Trust small business
development project in Khayelitsha
(investment/technical assistance):
Borrower: Triple Trust Organization
DBSA finance: R1 625 000
Total cost: R3 012 800
Region D
Evaluation of mining lease between
Kiwane and Chalumna (technica1
assistance):
Borrower: Ciskei Government
DBSA finance: R300 000
Total cost: R311 400
Transkei small business
development: Project III
(investment):
Borrower: Transkei Development
Corporation
DBSA finance: R24 985 600
Total cost: R27 763 600
Region B
KwaZulu small business
development programme: Project III
(investment):
Borrower: KwaZu1u Finance and
Investment Corporation
DBSA finance: R31 875 000
Total cost: R35 063 000
KFC Industrial development
programme: Project III (investment):
Borrower: KwaZulu Finance and
Investment Corporation
DBSA finance: R140 335 000
Total cost: R140 335 000
Region F
Songimvelo development - Rest
camps and breeding stock
purchases (investment):
Borrower: Kangwane Parks
Corporation
DBSA finance: R4 915 200
Total cost: R21 953 200
Region G
Lebowa small business
development: Project II (investment):
Borrower: Lebowa Development
Corporation
DBSA finance: R16 231 200
Total cost: R28 235 000
Venda industrial development:



Project IV (Infra) (investment):
Borrower: Venda Development
Corporation
DBSA finance: R3 135 000
Total cost: R3 646 000
Region H
KwaNdebele: Industrial
development - Project V
(investment):
Borrower: KwaNdebe1e National
Development Corporation
DBSA finance: R13 163 185
Total cost: R17 383 985
Multi-region
Strategic tourism development plan
for South Africa(techn1ca1
assistance):
Borrower: South African Tourism
Board
DBSA finance: R171 700
Total cost: R255 000
Neighbouring countries
Lesotho industrial development
programme Project I (investment):
Borrower: Lesotho National
Development Corporation
DBSA finance: R4 929 800
Total cost: R7 787 000
Region D
Ciskei water development plan:
Phase II(technica1 assistance):
Borrower: Ciskei Government
DBSA finance: R1 226 000
Total cost: R1 226 000
Upgrading of Ilitha Loop road
(investment):
Borrower: Ciskei Government
DBSA finance: R1 614 000
Total cost: R1 614 000
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R
Augmentation of Sandile regional
water supply scheme (investment):
Borrower: Ciskei Government
DBSA finance: R2 150 000
Total cost: R2 203 000
Buffalo Basin effluent disposal
(technical assistance):
Recipient: Regiona1 Liaison
Committee
DBSA grant: R117 000
Total cost: R195 000
Upgrading of road R61 between
Lusikisiki and Port St Johns
(investment):
Borrower: Transkei Government
DBSA finance: R54 776 000
Total cost: R55 000 000
Upgrading of road GR3O between
Umtata and Ngqeleni (investment):
Borrower: Transkei Government
DBSA finance: R19 664 000
Total cost: R20 118 000
Region E
Construction of Xolo access road
(investment/technical assistance):
Borrower: KwaZulu Government
DBSA finance: R683 000
Total cost: R727 000
Upgrading and reconstruction of
Ncgolosi pass (Road ZM16302)
(investment):
Borrower: KwaZulu Government
DBSA finance: R16 670 000
Total cost: R16 765 000
Upgrading of Osizweni - Dannhauser
road (investment):
Borrower: KwaZulu Government
DBSA finance: R15 050 000
Total cost: R15 215 000
Region F
Nsikazi regional bulk water supply:
Phase I (investment):
Borrower: KaNgwane Government
DBSA finance: R4 174 000
Total cost: R4 356 000
Region G
Upgrading and construction of road
L170 from Mankweng to Solomondale
(investment):
Borrower: Lebowa Government
DBSA finance: R13 591 000
Total cost: R13 591 000
Upgrading of the Maake entrance
road: Phase I (investment):
Borrower: Lebowa Government
DBSA finance: R7 107 000
Total cost: R7 107 000
Upgrading of Magnet Heights/Jane
Purse road (investment):
Borrower: Lebowa Government
DBSA finance: R11 720 000
Total cost: R11 720 000
Construction of the Seshego access
road (investment):
Borrower: Lebowa Government
DBSA finance: R1 600 000
Total cost: R11 553 000
Venda post and telecommunications
Phase III: Transmission link,



switching equipment and subscriber
network: Project IIA (Masisi)
(investment):
Borrower: Venda Government
DBSA finance: R5 929 600
Total cost: R5 946 000
Rambuda area: Provision of
electricity (investment):
Borrower: Venda Electricity
Corporation
DBSA finance: R592 500
Total cost: R597 500
Re-inforcement of power supply to
Phiphidi/Makhado (investment):
Borrower: Venda Electricity
Corporation
DBSA finance: R2 756 000
Total cost: R2 781 000
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Annexure 1: Development programme
Thohoyandou street lighting (Phase I)
(investment):
Borrower: Venda Government
DBSA finance: R400 000
Total cost: R404 000
Venda Electricity Corporation:
Sundry electricity extensions to
consumers (investment):
Borrower: Venda Government
DBSA finance: R2 500 000
Total cost: R2 530 000
Market survey - PR Mphephu
Airport: Phase I (technical
assistance):
Borrower: Venda Government
DBSA finance: R82 000
Total cost: R91 000
Upgrading Thengwe to Matavhela
Road (investment):
Borrower: Venda Government
DBSA finance: R24 913 000
Total cost: R24 928 000
Gazankulu electricity supply:
Transmission lines and substations:
Phase I (investment):
Borrower: Gazankulu Government
DBSA finance: R9 200 000
Total cost: R9 511 000
Region H
Bophuthatswana national
telecommunications development:
Upgrading and provision of
transmission systems: Phase
V- Project II (investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R12 098 000
Total cost: R13 592 000
Upgrading of
Kliprand - Mmametlhake road
(investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R11 151 000
Total cost: R12 743 000
Construction of
Vlaklaagte - Tweefontein road
(investment):
Borrower: KwaNdebe1e Government
DBSA finance: R12 751 000
Total cost: R12 771 000
Construction of
Kameel - Valschfontein road
(investment):
Borrower: KwaNdebe1e Government
DBSA finance: R9 114 300
Total cost: R9 265 300
Construction of Vlaklaagte - Verena
road (NP53 and NPSO) (investment):
Borrower: KwaNdebele Government
DBSA finance: R14 733 000
Total cost: R14 733 000
Region I
Upgrading of Silverkrans - Pella road
(investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R19 879 000
Total cost: R22 088 000
Bophuthatswana national



telecommunications development:
Extension of transmission, switching
and distribution components:
Phase V - ProjectI(ir1vestment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R50 821 000
Total cost: R57 119 000
Upgrading of Lesung -
Wolhuterskop road (investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R54 368 000
Total cost: R60 818 000
Construction of Matloding bridge
(investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R349 000
Total cost: R390 000
Saulspoort pipeline upgrading and
extensions (investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R25 970 000
Total cost: R26 862 000
Multi-region
Upgrading of high voltage
transmission system: Regions 5 and 6
(investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
E1ectricity Corporation
DBSA finance: R46 319 000
Total cost: R50 736 000
Transkei hydrological master plan:
Phase II (technica1 assistance):
Borrower: Transkei Government
DBSA finance: R5 640 000
Total cost: R5 640 000
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Annexure 1: Development programme
Transkei water resource
development authority:
Establishment of institutional
structure - Phase II (technical
assistance):
Borrower: Transkei Government
DBSA finance: R600 000
Total cost: R620 000
Transkei Road Transport
Corporation: Short-term management
investigation (technica1 assistance):
Borrower/Recipient: Transkei Road
Transport Corporation
DBSA finance and grant: R920 000
Total cost: R995 000
Restoration of gravel road network in
Transkei: Phase I (investment):
Borrower: Transkei Government
DBSA finance: R6 872 000
Total cost: R6 902 000
Neighbouring countries
Lesotho Highlands Development
Authority institutional development
(bridging finance):
Recipient: Lesotho Highlands
Development Authority
DBSA guarantee: R30 000 000
Total cost: R242 000 000
Provision of electricity supply from
Maputsoe to Katse, Clarens to Butha-
Buthe: Phase IA construction
(investment):
Borrower: Lesotho High1ands
Development Authority
DBSA finance: R70 348 000
Total cost: R78 748 000
Lesotho Highlands water project
advanced infrastructure:
Construction of North End access
roads (investment):
Borrower: Lesotho Highlands
Development Authority
DBSA finance: R42 691 000
Total cost: R58 243 000
Upgrading border crossing facilities



Maputsoe/ Caledonspoort
(investment):
Borrower: Lesotho Highlands
Development Authority
DBSA finance: R8 470 000
Total cost: R9 772 000
Region B
Construction of Bophuthatswana
Agricultural High School: Taung
(investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R7 094 000
Total cost: R8 067 000
Extension to Bophuthatswana
Agricultural College: Taung
(investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R13 152 000
Total cost: R18 787 000
Region C
Thaba1Nchu Manpower Centre
(investment):
Borrower: Bophuthatswana
Government
DBSA finance: R4 360 000
Total cost: R15 749 000
Region D
Upgrading, new design and plan and
land-use survey at Tsolo Agricultural
College (investment):
Borrower: Transkei Government
DBSA finance: R18 019100
Totalcost: R18 019100
Region B
Construction of Umlazi
Comprehensive Technical High
School (investment):
Borrower: KwaZu1u Government
DBSA finance: R20 408 000
Total cost: R21 561 000
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Annexure 1: Development programme
KwaZulu Training Trust: Non-formal
education projects - Folweni
Community Learning Centre
(investment):
Borrower: KwaZulu Training Trust
DBSA finance: R595 514
Total cost: R718 303
Construction at Ezakheni College of
Education: Phase II (investment):
Borrower: KwaZulu Government
DBSA finance: R9 040 000
Total cost: R9 040 000
Region G
University of Venda: Investigation
into salary structure (technical
assistance):
Borrower: Venda Government
DBSA finance: R60 000
Total cost: R71 000
University of Venda: Development of
an appropriate institutional
structure - Phase II(techhica1
assistance):
Borrower: University of Venda
DBSA finance: R228 500
Total cost: R233 500
Venda national manpower
developmentstrategy(technica1
assistance):
Borrower: Venda Government
DBSA finance: R242 000
Total cost: R262 100
University of Venda Phase III: Library
and lecture rooms (investment):
Borrower: Venda Government
DBSA finance: R19 807 580
Total cost: R20 715 700
Madzivhandila Agricultural College
(investment):
Borrower: Venda Government
DBSA finance: R15 934 900
Total cost: R17 859 300
Preparation assistance loans
Preparation assistance loans are
provided to borrowers to finance the
preparation of investment projects
including the preliminary design and
feasibility studies related to a project,
During the year 24 preparation
assistance loans With a total amount of
R7,1 million were approved for the
following projects:
Region B
Infrastructure development
Rehabilitation of Taung-Pudimoe
main road(Vryburg-Kimber1ey)
Region C
Urban development
Infrastructure for Puthaditjhaba
residential Ext Phase I
Region D
Rural and agricultural development
Herschel livestock farmer support
programme
Urban development
Butterworth: Water supply and
telemetry
Mdahtsane - alleviation of sewage
pollution
Mdantsahe , upgrade of Qumsa



highway
Infrastructure development
Construction of primary road: Peddie
to Crossroads
Rehabilitation of primary road: Great
Fish River/King Williams Town
Rehabilitation of primary road:
Zwelitsha to Needs Camp
Wesley regional water scheme:
Phase I
Region G
Rural and agricultural development
Agricultural development for
Arabie/Ohfants irrigation scheme
Dumfries irrigation farmer settlement
Urban development
Installation of water meters
Mankweng sewage purification
works
Business and entrepreneurial
development
Gazankulu industrial development:
Project IV
Venda energy centre
Infrastructure development
Construction of infrastructure for the
Arabie/Ohfants irrigation scheme
Construction of Mankweng-Sebayeng
regional water supply
Construction of Molepo regional
water supply scheme
Construction of Turtloop Dam
regional water supply
Thohoyahdou: Distributor roads
Upgrading of the Dopeni to
Piesangshoek road
Upgrading of the Hamangilasi to
Vuwani road
Neighbouring countries
Infrastructure development
Lesotho Highlands water project -
communication systems
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Annexure 2: Development regions
Salient features, 1985 and 1990
Regions
A B C D E F G H I Total
Area (kmz)1 1990 278 500 270 600 118 900 151900 112 700 80 500 119 600 27 300 61 100 1221
 100
(%) 22,8 22,2 9,7 12,4 9,2 6,6 9,8 2,2 5,0 100
Population (’000) 19852 3 164 1 025 2 400 4 337 7 953 1 775 3 757 7 533 1 639 33 582
19903 3 633 l 123 2 694 4 805 8 750 2 024 4 421 8 771 1 830 38 051
Average annual growth rate (%) 2,8 1,8 2,3 2,1 1,9 2,7 3,3 3,1 2,2 2,53
Economically active population (1000) 19852 1 356 306 913 1 041 2 060 678 650 3 553 578 1
1 135
19903 l 573 330 1 030 l 158 2 275 768 765 4 154 640 12 714
Average annualgrowth rate(%) 3,0 1,5 2,4 2,2 2,0 2,5 3,3 3,2 2,1 2,7
Literacyrate4 19852 78,8 58,1 65,8 62,6 60,9 58,6 54,5 76,1 63,6 65,8
19903 83,5 61,8 71,5 67,3 71,1 68,8 65,1 81,1 71,7 72,8
Population density(persons per km?) 1990 13,0 4,2 22,7 31,6 77,6 25,1 37,0 321,3 30,0 31,
2
Grossgeographical productat 1985 14347 2499 7820 7792 15 757 10028 2919 45117 6144 112 42
3
currentprices(Rmillion) 19903 29 233 4531 14623 16 791 34 821 25 559 7131 93 050 11458 23
7197
Rea1(1985 prices) average annual
growth rate, 1985-1990 (%):
GGP 1,1 -0,6 0,4 2,1 2,4 6,3 4,8 1,1 0,4 1,8
PercapitaGGP -1,7 -2,4 -1,8 - 0,5 3,6 1,5 -2,0 -1,8 -0,7
1. Estimated figures
2. The 1985 population census figures were adjusted by DBSA to compensate for apparent un
deI-enumeration
3. Estimates for 1990 based on historical tendencies
4. Percentage of the de facto population with some degree of education
Development regions:
A. Western Cape
B. Northern Cape and three Bophuthatswana districts
C. Orange Free State, Qwaqwa and one Bophuthatswana district
D. Eastern Cape, Ciskei and eighteen Transkei districts
E. N atal, KwaZulu and ten Transkei districts
F. Eastern Transvaal and KaNgwane
G. Northern Transvaal, Lebowa, Gazankulu and Venda
H. Pretoria-Witvvatersrand-Vaal Triangle, KwaNdebele and three Bophuthatswana districts
1. Western Transvaal and seven Bophuthatswana districts
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